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Criryor Horry HiLr, FLORIDA

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT AWARDED
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to the City of Holly Hill, Florida, for its
- comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended Septenber
30. 2003,

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards.
Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We
believe our curren! report continues to conform to Ceriificate of
Achievement Program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA
to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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CITY OF HOLLY HILL

The City with a Heart

1065 Ridgewood Avenue v Holly Hill, Florida 32117
www.hollyhilifl.org

April 12, 2005

Honorable Mayor Arthur, and
Members of the City Commission
City of Holly Hill, Florida

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Holly Hill, Florida, for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2004, is hereby submitted pursuant to the City Charter, Florida Statutes,
and Chapters 10.500 and 11.45, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the government. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operation of the various funds and
account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the rcader to gain an
understanding of the City's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and compliance. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the City's
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the
independent auditors’ report, management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial
statements, required supplementary information, and the combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.

Management’s discussion and analysis, (MD&A), which immediately follows our independent
auditors’ report on the City’s basic financial statements, provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis of the information and data contained in the basic financial statements.
This year’s MD&A includes comparative information on both the current and the immediately
prior fiscal year’s operations, which is helpful in reviewing the City’s financial trends
experienced over the past two years. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should
be read in conjunction with it.

The City is required to make the determination whether the audit of the City’s participation in
federal awards and state financial assistance projects will be conducted as a single audit in
conformity with the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and Chapter 10.550, Rules
of the Auditor General. Based on the level of expenditures directly related to federal award
programs and state financial assistance projects, the City was required to have its September 30,
2004 fiscal year end audit conducted as a single audit for federal program purposes only.
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Accordingly, there are supplementary reports and a schedule of expenditures of federal awards relative to
a single audit presented in the last section of this report. Based on the level of expenditures directly related
to state financial assistance, the City was not required to have its September 30, 2004 fiscal year end audit
conducted as a Florida single audit.

This report includes all funds of the City, The City provides a full range of municipal services contemplated
by statute or character. They include law enforcement and fire protection, development services, sanitation
and solid waste control, stormwater management services, road and street facilities, employment opportunity,
industry development, health services, parks and recreation facilities, community redevelopment, and general
administrative services. This report also includes the Community Redevelopment Authority. Since its
govermning body is the same as the City’s, and a separate legal entity was not formed with its creation, their
financial statements are included in the City’s basic financial stateinents as a separate special revenue fund
in a blended presentation.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City is located on the castern end of the Interstate-4 (1-4) corridor, the economic zone of Central Florida
that roughly follows I-4 from Tampa through Orlando to the communities along the Atlantic coast in Volusia
County.

Growth along the I-4 corridor has been exceptional and is expected to continue. Growth in the City increased
about 1% during the past year, with a new subdivision off 8th Street and a new community bank on U.S 1
expected to be completed in mid to late 2005, Opportunities for additional growth still exist in an already
dynamic business and industrial community. Due to limited availability of vacant land parcels and other
resources the City encourages new and expanded business development on a business-by-business basis and
by assisting the owners wherever possible in overcoming obstacles. Property valuations increased
significantly during the past year by 10.33%. The community currently has a 4.5% unemployment rate as
compared to the statewide rate of 4.7%.

Growth trends and their challenge to government are expected to continue. Maintaining service delivery to
the residential and business community continues to require fresh approaches and examination of established
practices to obtain and manage resources to meet those challenges.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During the course of the year, the City Commission and staff pursued several major projects and programs.
Ameoeng the most significant of those projects were:

1. Recreation Facilities — The interior of Sica Hall Community Center was completely refurbished in
the spring of 2004 with funding provided by the Community Development Block Grant. City
employees and sub-contractors replaced air conditioning ducts and flooring, instatled a new ceiling,
re-plastered walls, added new lighting fixtures and storage closets, refurbished the bathrooms and
modermized the kitchen. Organizations and individuals utilizing the comumunity center for meetings,
recreation activities, and family events are delighted with the rengvations. Exterior improvements
are planned in 2005.
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2. Public Safety - The City continued working on its plan to expand the Fire Department and co-locate
additional personnel and equipment in a County fire station. During the year, three additional
firefighters were hired to be ready to transfer in December 2004 to County Fire Station #1 1 located
on Derbyshire Road. These firefighters will work with County fircfighters to provide an increased
level of fire protection to the northwest area of the city and to the unincorporated area of the county.

3. Water and Sewer - In late 2002, the City Commission awarded contracts to begin a four-year
program to replace water meters throughout the city with electronic meters that provide greater
accuracy in meter readings. To date, about 50% or 3,000 water meters have been replaced. This
program is expected to increase revenues due to greater meter reading accuracy and to reduce
personnel costs.

4. Public Works — In conjunction with the Florida Department of Transportation’s widening of Nova
Road from Flomich Street north, the City in 2001, entered into a joint project agreement to relocate
and extend the city’s water lines to provide water service o residents and businesses in that area.
In 2002, as an option, the City decided to have FDOT also install an 8" reuse water main that will
connect with the City of Ormond Beach’s reuse water line for irrigation of the City’s medians on
Nova Road. The FDOT has awarded $400,000 to the City for median beautification along the length
of road through Holly Hill. The widening project is near completion and the median beautification
is to be finished in 20085,

5. Stormwater Management - A $5.6 million Stormwater Improvement project funded by the State
Revolving Fund loan program started in late 2001 with the purchase of several properties for
stormwater retention areas. Phase I of this project was completed in the summer of 2003 and Phase
IF was essentially completed in July, 2004 alleviating flooding conditions in many neighborhoods.
Existing storm sewers were cleaned and refurbished, and miles of new underground storm sewers
were installed. State Avenue was rebuilt from 15" Street to Calle Grande with new curbs, gutters,
and asphalt surfaces. Many miles of streets were resurfaced. Also five new stormwater retention
ponds were constructed and plans are underway to give them a park-like atmosphere.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to cnsure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes
that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2} the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgeting Controls In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the City Commission. Activities of all the governmental and proprietary funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget.
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The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated
amount) 1s established by department or division within an individual fund. The City also maintains an
encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Any unencumbered
balance of appropriations shall revert to the General Fund and be subject to future appropriations. Open
encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balance at year end. Budgetary control is maintained by
a constant review of revenues and expenditures by the City Manager and Finance Director. This budgetary
control is communicated to the department heads.

Cash Management The City maintains pooled cash and investment accounts for all cash and investments
under its control. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposit and time deposit
accounts and U.S. Treasury securitics ranging from 12 to 24 months to maturity. The City’s investment
policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio.
Accordingly, deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized in accordance
with state statutes. All collateral on deposits was held either by the City, its agent or a financial institution’s
trust department in the City’s name. At September 30, 2004, unrestricted cash was invested primarity in
interest bearing demand deposits, with the State Board of Administration, and in U.S. Treasury obligations.

Risk Management The City contracts for all known risk elements through the purchase of insurance from
outside insurance companies. In addition, various risk control fechniques are in place to minimize accident
related losses. These include the establishment of safety rules and procedures, accident prevention training,
and the ongeing efforts of the safety committee, which is charged with (1) reviewing accident reports to
identify and verify their causes; (2) recommending corrective actions; (3) reviewing employee safety
suggestions; (4) hearing and investigating employee complaints; (5) investigating hazardous conditions,
material or equipment; and (6) recommending awards or penalties. All insurance coverage is held by
comumercial carriers and no settlements in excess of claims have been incurred during the past three fiscal
years.

Debr Administration At September 30, 2004, the City had several debt obligations outstanding. This debt
was comprised of $13,030,000 in cutstanding Water and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2002 (rated AAA by Moody’s Investor Services, AAA by Standard and Peor’s Corporation and insured by
MBIA Insurance Corporation) and $7,835,989 in installiment note obligations. During the year, the City
made loandraws of $2,770,179 through participation in the Florida Department of Environmental Protection,
State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The proceeds were used to fund the costs related to various stormwater
drainage improvement projects.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit The City Charter and State Statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants. The accounting firm of Brent Millikan & Company, P.A., was selected by the City
Commission to serve in this capacity. Their auditors’ report on the general purpose financial statements is
included in the financial section of this report. Their reports on compliance and other matters is contained
in the Compliance section at the end of the comprehensive annual financial report.




Honorable Mayor Arthur, and
Members of the City Comunission

City of Holly Hill, Florida

April 20, 2004

Page 5

Awards The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the government for its comprehensive annual financial report for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003,  The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government reports.
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program standards.
Such report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last 27 consccutive years. We believe our current report continues to meet the
Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the Cityreceived the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual budget
for the fiscal year beginning October I, 2003. This is the sixteenth consecutive year that the City has
received this prestigious award, In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the
City’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories including policy documentation,
financial planning and organization.

Acknowledgments The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made
possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the
department has my sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this report. In
closing, without the leadership and support of the governing body of the City, preparation of this report
would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,
/ ,
Py o .
C s A 'f,, ,{,{u,.{f{_ﬁ,-f,,;{dj{,,&mb/

- Brenda Gubernator
Director of Finance
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BRENT MILLIKAN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor, City Commission
and City Manager
City of Holly Hill, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Holly Hill, Florida,
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as.listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of City of Holly
Hill, Florida’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund, which
reflect $4,813,965 of the assets and net assets held in trust for pension benefits at September 30, 2004, and
$668,083 of contributions and investment earnings for the year then ended. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates
to the amounts included for Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund, is based on the report of the other
auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Holly Hill, Florida, as of September 30, 2004 and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 12,2003, on
our consideration of City of Holly Hill, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction
with this report in considering the results of our audit.

205 MAGNOLIA ST. - NEW SMYRNA BEACH, FL 32168-7125 - (386) 427-1333 + FAX (386) 427-5823 » www.bmcpa.com

MEMBER: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Private Companies Practice Section



The Honorable Mayor, City Commission
and City Manager

City of Holly Hill, Florida

Page 2 of 2

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information on pages 3
through 14 and 57 through 64, respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary mformation required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required suppiementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Holly Hill, Florida’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a reguired part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in cur opinion, are fairly stated in all materjal
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical
tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion en them.

Bet Millbr ¢ Co., Cho

April 12,2005



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS






MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As financial management of the City of Holly Hill, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as the “City™), we affer
the readers of these basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial
activities for the fiscal year that ended on September 30, 2004, This discussion and analysis is designed to
assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues and activities and to identify any significant
changes in financial position. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with our letter of transmit(al found in the preceding introductory section, and the City’s financial
statements, which follow this information. Please note. The City presents prior year comparative financial
information when applicable and meaningful.

Financial Highlights

. The City’s financial position remains strong as a result of the current year’s operations. Overall
combined assets of the City totaled $46.0 million at the close of the 2004 fiscal year compared to
$43.6 million last year. Total assets exceeded liabilitics by approximately $23.5 million (combined
net asseis) compared with $23.0 million one year earlier. The unrestricted component of the City’s
combined net assets totaled $4.9 million at year end. This represents the unrestricted amount
available to be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors,

. Net assets of the City’s governmental activities totaled $14.3 million, an increase of approximately
$270,000 over last year’s $14.0 million, or 1.9 percent. At the same time, net assets of its business-
type activities totaled $9.2 million, an increase of approximately $271,000 over last year’s $9.0
million, or 3.0 percent.

’ During 2004, the City incurred expenses that were $440,519 more than the $7.0 miliion generated
in taxes and other revenues for providing its various governmental program activities and programs
(exctuding interfund transfers of $710,000). This compares favorably with excess expense of
approximately $304,000 incurred in the prior year, and net revenues of approximately $6.2 million.

. The City’s business-type activities produced net operating revenues of $0.9 miilion for 2004 based
on consumptive water/sewer/solid waste utility sales of $5.6 million. Approximately $1.5 million
of additional expense was incurred in 2004 as a result of hurricane related damages incurred near
the end of the fiscal year. It is anticipated that approximately 95% of these expenses will be
recovered with FEMA disaster funds assistance. The operating margins in these funds continue to
be capable of providing direct financial support to the City’s governmental funds. Operating
transfers in 2004 totaled $710,000, compared to $935,000 last year.

. The total costs incurred by the City in providing its various programs remained relatively stable in
2004 and 2003, after eliminating the one-time charges for disaster related expenses incurred as a
result of hurricane related damages and cleanup costs. Operating expenses totaled $7.4 million and
$6.3 million for the City’s governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively.

. Unreserved fund equity in the General Fund decreased by approximately $806,000 at the end of 2004
as a result of advancing funds of approximately $250,000 to the Solid Waste Fund to finance a
portion of the unanticipated costs of hurricane related damages. The remainder of this decrease was
anticipated with the appropriation of prior years’ surpius funds.



. Resources earned and available for appropriation in the current year were slightly less (0.9%) than
the amounts anticipated in the General Fund’s operating budget. However, General Fund
expenditures were well within the City’s spending limits and fell 7.4% below its revised
appropriations for the year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three parts: 1) management’s discussion and analysis,
2} the basic financial statements {including government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements,
and notes to the financial statements), and 3) required supplementary information, including budgetary
comparisons and other sclected financial and fiduciary fund data.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic
financial statements and required supplementary information. The MD&A represents management’s
examination and analysis of the City’s financial condition and financial performance as a whole, Summary
financial statement data, key financial and operational indicators used in the strategic plan, budget, and other
management tools were used for this analysis.

The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City. The
first two statements consist of entity-wide financial statements that provide both the short- and fong-term
financial information about the City's overall financial status, including its governmental activities and its
business-type activities. These statements report information about the City using full accrual accounting
methods and economic resources focus as utilized by similar business activities in the private sector.
Information concerning all of the City’s assets and liabihities, both financial and capital, and short-term and
long-term debt are included. Likewise, all revenues and expenses received during the year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid are reported. However, rate-regulated accounting principles applicable to
private sector utilities are not used by governmental utilities. The remaining statements are fund financial
statements that focus on individual parts of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide financial statements. The governmental funds statements tell how general
government services like public safety were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future
spending. Proprictary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities
the government operates like businesses, such as the City’s water and sewer utifity and solid waste collection
system. Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the City
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others (like the retirement plans for the City’s employees),
to whom the resources in question belong.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The basic financial statements of the City
include a4 statement of net assets and a statement of activitics, which are described as follows:

. A statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities at the end of
its fiscal year, with the difference beiween the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decrcases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the City’s financial position is
improving or deteriorating. Net assets increase when revenues exceed expenses. Increases to assets
without a corresponding increase to liabilities results in inercased net assets, which indicates an
improved financial condition.




. The statement of activities presents the resuits of business operations over the course of the fiscal
year and information as to how the City’s net assets changed during the year. All changes in net
assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only resultin cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., delinquent taxes and earned but
unused personal leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principaily
supported by taxes and intergovermmental revenues {government activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-fype
activities). The governmental activitics of the City include general government services, public safety
(police, fire and building inspection), highways and streets, stormwater management, economic development,
and recreation and leisure services. The business-type activities of the City include its water and sewer utility
and solid waste utility operations.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds -
not the City as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activitics or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial stetements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
These funds are reported using the modificd accrueal accounting method, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can be readily converted into cash. Such information is useful in evaluating a
government’s near-ferm financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
itis useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide areconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities. These reconciliations can be found on pages 20 and 23,

The City maintains nine individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund bafances for the General Fund, the Comimunity Redevelopment Trust (special revenue) Fund,
and the Stormwater Drainage (special revenue) Fund, alf of which are considered to be major funds. Data
from the six other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation and include the
remainder of the City’s special revenue, capital projects and debt service funds. Individual fund data for each
of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.



The City adopts an annual appropriations budget for each of its governmental funds in accordance with state
statutes. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance
with these budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 to 23 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains only one of two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements, Enterprise funds are used to account for the fiscal activities of the City’s municipal water and
sewer utility fund and solid waste utility fund operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device
used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City various departments and cost functions. The
City does not presently use any internal service funds.

Proprietary fund financial statements, like the government-wide statements, provide both long- and short-
term financial information. The proprietary fund financiai statements provide separate financial information
for the water and sewer utility and solid waste utility operations, both of which are considered to be major
funds of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24 to 27 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees” pension plans, Fiduciary funds are
used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government and are separately
reported in the statements of fiduciary net assets and changes in fiduciary net assets. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not available
to support the City’s own programs. Rather, the City is responsible for ensuring that the asscts reported in
these funds are used for their intended purposes.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 28 to 29 of this report. Combining
statements for these funds are found in Exhibits 12 and 13.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The financial statements also include notes which provide required
disclosures and other information that are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the
statements. The notes present information about the City’s significant accounting policies, account balances
and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 30 to 55 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation
to provide certain pension benefits to its employees and information that further explains and supports the
information in the financial statements. This section also contains budgetary comparisons for the City’s
governmental fund activities. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 56 to 63 of this
report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole

Net Assets.  As noted previously, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. This year, the City’s combined net assets increased from $22,965,603 at the end of 2003
to $23,505,768 at the end of 2004. Looking at the net assets of the City’s governmental and business-type
activities separately, we can see that the City experienced moderate growth in the net assets of its government
activities (1.9%) and in its business-type activities {3.0%).




Net assets of the City’s governmental activities increased by $269,481 for the year and totaled $14,260,774
at the end of the fiscal year, Of this amount, approximately 88% is either restricted as to the purposes they
can be used for or is invested in capital assets (land, buildings and equipment). Consequently, unrestricted
net assets, the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints
established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements, totaled $1,777,068 at the end
of 2004.

Net assets of the City’s business-type activitics increased by $270,684 for the year and totaled $9,244,994
at the end of the fiscal year. Approximately 42% of its total net assets ($3,924,901) reflects its net
investiment in capital assets, less that portion of related debt used to acquire those assets that is stili
outstanding. These capital assets are used to provide water and sewer utility services and solid waste utility
services to our customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that under normal
circumstances the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Long-term debt obligations associated with
this capitalization totaled $13,872,099 at the end of 2004, The following is a comparative summary of net
assets at year end;

Net Assets
September 30, 2004 and 2003

Governmental Activities Business-type Activitics Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Assels:
Current and other assets . . . $ 4,698,817 5,434,776 7,011,900 6,420,621 11,710,717 11,855,397
Capital assets, net ... .... 16,754,532 13757357 _17.578.757 18.020.707 34333289  31,778.064
Total assets ......... 21.453.34% 19,192,133 24,590.657 24441328 46,044,006  43.633.461
Liabilitics:
Long-term debt ontstanding 6,381,696 4,037,789 14,008,466 14,567,583 20,390,162 18,605,372
Other liabitities .. ... ... .. 810.879 1,163,051 1,337,197 896,435 2,148.076 2,062,486
Total Habilities ...... 7,192,575 2,200,840 15345603 15467018 22,538,238 20,667,858
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt .., ., 11,024,444 10,344,199 3,924,901 4,528,390 14,949,345 14,872,589
Restricted .............. 1,459,262 1,199,398 2,190,356 1,603,691 3,649,618 2,803,089
Unrestricted ............ 1,777.068 2,447,696 3,129,737 2,842,329 4,906,805 5,289,923
Tofal net assets . ... .. $_14260774 13,991,293 9.244.994 8974310 _23.505.768 22 945,603

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type
activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year,

Changes in Net Assets. While the statement of net assets shows a snapshot of the City’s financial position
at the end of the fiscal year, the statement of changes in net assets provides answers as to the nature and
source of those changes. During 2004, the City’s combined net assets totaled $23.5 million, which isup $0.5
million gver last year’s reported $23.0 million. During this same period, the City’s revenues totaled $14.3
million, compared to $12.0 million last year. Overall, approximately 11% of the City’s total revenues come
from property taxes, while almost 32% of every dollar raised comes from some type of tax collected by the
City. Another 47% comes from fees charged for services, while the remaining 21% is a combination of state
and federal financial assistance, operating and capital grants and donations, interest and other earnings.



The following is a comparative sunmnary of changes in net assets for the year ended September 30, 2004:

Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2004 and 2003

Govemnmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services . ... $ 1,015,394 889,199 5,616,915 5,589,801 6,632,309 6,479,090
Operaling grantsfother . . 58,959 186,284 1,479,833 0 1,538,792 186,284
Capital grants/other . . .. 536,974 0 118,956 105,235 655,930 105,235

General revenues:
Property laxes ......... 1,593,074 1,578,138 G 0 1,593,074 1,578,138
Othertaxes ........... 2,891,221 2,825,942 ¢ 0 2,891,221 2,825,942
Intergovernmental . . .. .. 768,078 538,111 G 0 768,078 538,111
Other revenues ... . ... 102,981 167,551 70,093 109,342 173.074 276,893
Total revenues ... .. 6,966,681 6,185,225 7,285,797 5804468 14,252478 11,989,693

Expenses:

General government .. ... .. 1,426,332 1,266,274 0 0 1,426,332 1,266,274
Publicsafety ............. 3,270,335 3,024,156 0 0 3,270,335 3,024,156
Transportation ........ .., 886,017 809,073 0 0 886,017 809,073
Economic environment . . . .. 334,097 114,213 0 0 334,097 114,213
Physical environment . ... .. 457,326 311,713 0 [ 457,326 311,713
Culture/recreation . ........ 909,289 922,641 0 0 909,289 922,641
Interest on long-term debt .. 123,804 41,186 0 ) 123,804 41,186
Water and sewer utilities . .. 0 0 3.569.542 3,420,186 3,569,542 3,420,186
Solid waste utilities ....... 0 0 2,735,571 1,107,784 2735571 1,107,784
Tolal expenses ........ 7.407.200 6,489,256 6,305,113 4,527970 13712313 11,017.226
Transfers in {out) ......... 710,000 935,000 {710.0003 {935.000) 0 0
Increasc innetassets ...  § 269,481 630.969 270.684 341,498 540.165 972,467

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the City’s governmental activities experienced strong growth during 2004. Overall, the City’s
governmental revenues totaled $6,966,681, which represents an mercase of $781,456, orl2.6% over last
year’s reported governmental revenues totaling $6,185,225. This increasc was primarily attributable to
moderately stable increases in virtually all revenue sources, with some exceptions. During the past year, the
City placed more emphasis on identifying the variable costs of providing various municipal services in an
etfort to explore its ability to assess charges for services in these user areas. In 2004, the City experienced
an overall 14.2% increase in its charges for services, which totaled $1,015,394, compared to $889,199 the
prior year. The City also experienced an increase in outside grant (capital) funding of approximately
$540,000 for scheduled capital improvements. These funds are not expected to be received in the subsequent
fiscal year.

While revenue growth experienced for the year was approximately 12.6% overall, revenues earned from the
assessment of ad valorem taxes remained extremely stable during 2004 with a minimal increase of
approximately $15,000. Ad valorem taxes totaling $1,593,074 were collected in 2004 compared with
$1,578,138 in the prior year. The ad valorem millage rate for operating purposes was reduced in 2003 for
the third consccutive year to 4.08002 mills; approximately 9% fower than the prior year’s millage rate (4.5
mills) and more than 25% lower than the millage rate in place a decade ago {5.4695 mills).




The following is a summary of the City’s governmental revenues - by source:

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Property taxes

Other taxes

Intergovernmental revenuesl | Grants and contributions

Other | Charges for services [

Anindividual comparison of the City’s functional program revenues and costs of providing program services
to its citizens is useful in identifying the programs, and the extent of which each are dependent on taxes and
other non-exchange revenues to subsidize their program operations. They are listed in the following graph:

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

$4,000.000 .
|
| [] Expenses
B Program Revenue
$3,000,000 -
$2,000,000
$1,000,000 ! i
"_-__7_- —_— N
Pubkic Safety I Economic Environment Culture/Recreation
Genaral Govemment Transportation Physical Envirenment Interest on LT Debt

Expenses for the City’s governmental activities grew at the same increased pace in matching revenue growth
for the period. Combined governmental activities expenses totaled $7,407,200, which represents an increase
of $917,944, or 14.1% over last year’s expenses of $6,489,256. Expense increases were recognized in all
of the City’s departmental areas during 2004. Over the last several years, a trend has emerged with respect
to a widening gap between property taxes, which are often thought of as paying for core governmental
services such as police and fire, and the actual costs of those public safety expenses. At year end, this gap
was over $1.8 million, compared to $1.5 million in the prior year.



Expenditures by Function - Governmental Activities
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities produced an increase in the City’s net assets of $270,684 in 2004, compared to
$341,498 during 2003. Overall, net assets from the City’s business-type activities ($9,244,994) account for
only 39.3% of the City’s combined total net assets at September 30, 2004. The major sources of operating
revenues for the City’s business-type activities include charges for services for water and sewer utilities and
solid waste utilities. Combined operating revenues from these two activities remained relatively stable in
2004 and totaled $5,616,915 compared to $5,589,891 in the prior year. Water and sewer utility revenues
increased $38,543 over last year’s revenue, while charges for solid waste removal declined by $11,519.
Investment earnings continued to decreased from $83,148 in 2003 to $77,712 in 2004 as a combined result
of lowered interest rates experienced on a national level and from the decline in surplus invested funds
experienced this year. Capital contributions received in the water and sewer utility fund increased to
$118,956 in 2004, compared to $105,235 in the prior year. As a cost control measure, the City has continued
to contract its solid waste operations with an outside contractor since 1999.

A comparison of the City’s functional program revenues and costs of providing business-type services to its
customers is useful in identifying the capabilities of producing revenues sufficient to operate their programs.

Operating Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
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Operating expenses of the business-type activities increased in 2004 to $5,670,043, compared to $3,879,469
in 2003. Included within these costs are approximately $1.5 million of debris removal expenses associated
with three hurricanes experienced in August and September, 2004, Approximately 5% of these costs either
have been, or will be, recovered with FEMA Disaster Recovery assistance in the subsequent fiscal year.
After removing this component, the remaining increase in expenses, while nominal, closely paralleled
inflation and growth in the demand for services.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legai requirements,

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year,

As the City compieted the current fiscal year its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$3,804,142, which was down $418,581, or 9.9%, below the $4,222.723 reported last year. Approximately
76.9% of this amount (§2,924,352) constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at
the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available
for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and purchasc orders of the
prior period ($265,934), 2) to reflect the prior advanee of resources to other funds which will be paid in
subsequent years ($309,700), 3) to pay debt service ($265,229), and 4) to finance specialized law
enforcement investigations ($38,927).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of September 30, 2004, the unreserved fund
balance in the general fund totaled $1,746,494, while total fund balance declined from $2,675,986 in 2003
to $2,080,493 in 2004. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance
represents approximately 25.8% of total general fund expenditures ($6,763,658), while total fund balance
represents 30.8% of that same amount. City officials have established a target threshold of 25% in
unreserved funds compared to General Fund expenditures. The current unreserved balance slightly exceeds
that target.

Fund balance in the general fund decreased by $595,493 during the current fiscal. The significant portion
of this decrease was planned at the onset of the current fiscal year at which time $1,457,300 in prior year
surplus funds were appropriated to finance these expenditures. Fund balance in the Stormwater Drainage
Fund increased $434,882 in 2004 as a result of the receipt of debt proceeds required to finance stormwater
utility system capital improvements. Combined fund balances in the Community Redevelopment fund and
all other nonmajor funds remained stable for the year with a slight increase of $14,480.

Proprietary Funds. The City’s proprictary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets in the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the current fiscal year amounted to
$2,281,777, compared to $2,025,866 one year earlier. This year’s increase of $255,911 was composed of
net earnings from operations of $124,646 and capital contributions of $118,956. Current year earnings were
also reported after transfers to the General Fund of $450,000.



Unrestricted net assets in the Solid Waste Fund totaled $847,960 at the end of 2004, compared to $816,363
at the end of the prior fiscal year. Net income for the year totaled $27,082, which is reported net of transfers
to the General Fund in the amount of $260,000,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the year, the City Commission revised the General Fund operating budget to reflect known changes in
its operating activities and spending needs. Differences between the original enacted budget and the final
amended budget were not significant,

The City’s overall revenue projections were increased by $137,600, which represents a 2.6% increase in
anticipated funding. Likewise, expenditure appropriations were increased by $137,800 near the end of the
fiscal year in an effort to meet all unanticipated spending requirements. These appropriations were funded
by a corresponding increase in the appropriation of prior years’ surplus funds to an amount not to exceed
$1,457,300 for the year.

Actual earned revenues were only $53,085 less than the amounts anticipated to be received during the year,
while actual expenditures incurred were $539,242 less than anticipated for the year. Virtually all of the
City’s departments contributed to a cutback in spending to achieve the current year's operating results.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. At September 30, 2004 and 2003, the City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business type activities totaled $34,333,289 and $31,778,004, respectively. These amounts are stated
net of accumulated depreciation of $19,926,522 and $18,595,971 for 2004 and 2003, respectfully.  This
investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, for all activities is reflected in the following schedule.

Capital Asscts
September 30, 2004 and 2003
Governmenial Activities Business-lype Activities Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Land ....... .. .ot 8 1,950,539 1,950,539 154,739 154,739 2,105,278 2,105,278
Capital assets not depreciated . 4,777,357 1,692,015 238,822 238,716 5,016,179 2,230,731
Buildings ................ 3,441,420 3,307,223 6,164,875 5,341,885 9,606,295 9,645,108
Improvements other

than buildings ........... 1,335,552 1,369,582 7,860,538 8.016,115 9,196,090 9,385,697
Equipment and fumitare .. ... 1,257,808 1,294,844 3,159,783 3,269,252 4,417,591 4,564,096
Infrastructure ............. 3,991,836 3843154 0 0 3.991.856 3,843,154

Nettotal ............... $_16.754.532 13757357 17.578,757 _ 18.020.707  34.333.289 31.778.064

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note & to the financial statements.
Long-term Debt. At year end, the City had $20,866,089 in bonds, notes and other long-term obligations

outstanding, all of which are secured solely by specified revenue sources. More detailed information about
the City’s long-term debt is presented in Note 9 to the financial statements.
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The City has an outstanding revenuc bond obligation in the amount of $13,030,000 at year end. The
proceeds of these bonds were used to finance improvements to the City’s water and sewer ufility system and
to refund previously issued bonds outstanding. These bonds are payable from revenues generated from the
water and sewer system and are payable serially through 2022,

The City has two outstanding revenuc note obligations totaling $547,845 at year end. The proceeds from
these obligations were used to finance the acquisition of a new fire truck and to construct improvements to
the City gynmasium and City Hall. These notes are payable from all of the City’s general revenues with the
exception of its ad valorem tax revenue, and by a pledge on the City’s utility service tax revenues, and are
due in varying amounts through 2008.

The City has two low-interest rate revenue note obligations payable to the State of Florida, Department of
Environmental Protection State Revolving Fund Loan Program totaling $7,288,244, in aggregate, at year end.
The proceeds of the first FDEP loan (issued in 1998) were used to finance the construction of wastewater
infiltration and inflow correction facilitics. The second FDEP loan is currently being used to finance
construction of needed stormwater drainage improvements. These notes arc secured by the City’s water and
sewer utility and stormwater utility revenues, respectively, and are payable in varying amounts through 2024,

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Many factors are considered cach year by the City Commission in its efforts to establish an operating budget,
to evaluate its personnel needs, and to develop uniform user fees that are reasonable, and more importantly,
capable of cost recovery. Some of the major factors considered in this process are the local economy,
civilian labor force, unemployment rates, and inflation rates.

Many factors are considered each year by the City Comumission in its efforts to establish an operating budget,
to evaluate its personnel needs, and to develop uniform user fees that are reasonable, and more importantly,
capable of cost recovery. Some of the major factors considered in this process are the local economy,
civilian labor force, unemployment rates, and inflation rates.

»  Themostrecent estimates available for unemployment data in Volusia County, Florida are compiled
by the Florida Agency for Workforce Innovation on the Florida Research and Economic Database
(FRED). This agency estimates a countywide unemployment rate of 4.4% at the end of September
2004, which s slightly lower than the 4.9% rate experienced one year carlier. These estimates
compare favorably to the state’s 4.1% and 4.9% unemployment rates at September 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

+ Inflationary trends for Volusia County compare favorably with those trends experienced at the
state and national levels.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased from $2,552,300 to
$1,746,494. Based on current year budget estimates for 2005, the City has determined that it will be
necessary to include approximately $1,048,000 of prior years” surplus funds in next year’s operating budget.
This is planned for the continuation of major improvements to the Parks and Recreation facilities, public
works security systems, new medians landscaping projects, and computer system upgrades. It has been
anticipated that all of the City’s spending requirements will be met with current financial resources along
with an approximate 8.75% increase in the ad valorem tax millage rate for the 2005 fiscal year.
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Requests for Infermation

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional information
should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director, City of Holly Hill, Florida, 1065 Ridgewood

Avenue, Holly Hill, Florida 32117-2898.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS






STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS Statement 1
September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Primary Government

Governmentat Business~Type
Activities _Activitjes Total
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..........ooieeiiiiri oo $ 3,450,294 2,928,234 6,378,528
Receivables, net of allowance for
uncollectible ACCOUNTS. ..ot eeee e sr e e e 298,678 499,672 797,750
Internal BalanCes. i e 365,842 (365,842) 0
Due fron: other GOVernments..... e veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerer . 518,718 1,479,833 1,998,551
Due from fiduciary pension trust. ..o 54,885 0 54,885
Unamortized debt iSSUANCE COSIS ..o e sereerene, 10,400 218,243 228,643
Restricted assets: -
Cash and cash equIValENLS...c.ooieee e 0 2,252,360 2,252,360
Capital assets:
L.and, improvements and construction
T P OIS et itetiertatie oot eeeeeeemeeeereeseeresaesesassensensteneenes 6,727,896 393,561 7,121,457
Other capital assets, net of depreciation.....ccocoovevereevr e, 10,026,636 17,185,196 27,211,832
TOtal ASSEIS tvoviircriree e 21,453,349 24,590.657 46,044,006
Liabifities:
Accounts payable and accrued labilities......oo.ovviiieeenn, 665,374 707,146 1,372,520
Deferred revenue and deposits.....coieeceeeeeieeeeereeeeee e, 145,503 630,031 775,556
Bonds, notes, and other payables:
Due or payable within one Year........ov e ieenie e, 402,755 610,684 1,013,439
Due or payable in more than one year.......ooooveoevieencenens, 5,327,333 13,201,415 18,588,748
Compensated abSENCES. ... oot r s 651,608 136,367 787,975
Total HAbIlILIES .o e et 7,192,575 15,345,663 22,538,238
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets net of related debt ....oooveviivrevivenne.. 11,024,444 3,924,901 14,949,345
Restricted for;
Capital Projects........coooicoeceimniriereeeeee e e 794,482 0 704,482
Community redevelopment projects........ooivovviisieiicinne.. 360,624 0 360.624
Special law enforcement. ... ..o veimiees e 38,927 0 38,927
Utifity plant expansion..............oeieenroereeeeee e 0 2,033,381 2,053,381
Db SEIVICE ittt e 265,229 136,975 402,204
UNTESIICIEA oottt et eneseeeegenes 1,777,068 3,129,737 4,906,805
Total Net ASSELS .ot 14,260,774 9,244,994 23,505,768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Program Revenue

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government. ... 3 1,426,332 288,931 0 0
Public Safety....ccociivvee e 3,270,335 61,738 53,402 49,507
Transportation......ocreerieeeeesreneeseens, 886,017 55,473 0 o
Economic environment.....oveiiieninn, 334,097 0 0 G
Physical environment ... 457,326 531,867 0 345,769
Culture/recreation. ... vnerinisiinnnns 909,289 77,385 5,557 141,698
Interest on long-term debt ... 123,804 0 0 0
Total governmental activities....... 7,407,200 1,015,594 58,959 336,974
Business-type activities:

Water and SEWET . s 3,569,542 4,084,770 0 118,956
Solid Waste. e, B 2,735,571 1,532,145 1,479,833 0
Total business-type activities....... 6,305,113 5,616,915 1,479,833 118,956

Total primary government.......co.ooeeeen.. $ 13,712.313 6,632,309 1,538,792 655,930

General revenues:

Property taxes, levied for general PUIBOSES ..o

Property taxes, levied for fax increment district. ...,

LB LR i eririteres e atie bt es b e e s b bt ettt bbb e ar e ea et b er e

Local 0plion gas tAXES. ..o
L T T b U STU PO

PUDBIIC SEIVICE TAXES 1 ivverreervereririe e saritanienseeserasaetaeverssrssatassasssnssensesasssnsasnseans

State revenue sharing. ..o

Other intergovernmental revenues. ...,

INVESHIENT CAIMUIIES  cvievers e ceire i isssrvs s eraeresesvee e s e secs e ae e

MISCEIANEOUS TEVERUR. ..veviterieeireiticeirincssesre e ersre s eressesenessssersssassarsasssasens

L.oss on disposal of fixed as5ets. i

R 1313 OO U OO U U UOUROUUOVEUUROTOROO

Total general revenues and transTerS. v v e eeeneeeereeres

Change iN Nt 8S5EES. oo et emere e e e s s s sb e s s v

Net 255818 - DEZINING ..ot e s e

Net 858885 = ENTINEZ. ettt et

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement 2

Net Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Govermmnental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
(1,137,401 (1,137,401}
(3,105,688} (3,105,688}
(830,544) (830,544)
{334,097) {334,097)
420,316 420,310
(684,649) (684,649)
(123,804 o (123,804)
. (5.795873) . (5,795873)
634,184 634,184
276,407 276,407
910,591 910,591
(5,795,873) 910,591 (4,885,282)
1,459,486 0 1,459,486
133,588 0 133,588
652,814 G 652,814
278,442 0 278,442
640,107 0 640,107
1,319,858 0 1,319,858
370,603 0 370,603
397,475 0 397,475
59,977 77,712 137,689
43,004 0 43,004
0 {7,619 (7.619)
710,000 (710.000) 0
6,065,354 (639,907) 5,425,447
269,481 270,684 540,165
13,991,293 8,974,310 22,965,603
14,260,774 9,244,994 23,505,768
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BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents......ccviininn s
Receivables, net
Accounts receivable

Delinquent taxes

Due from other funds.

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current fiabilities ...
Deferred revenues ..
Due to other funds...
Advances from other fUnds oo

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances

Advances 1o other funds........ccveceevie i

Law enforcement...,

Debt service..........
Unreserved, reported in
General fund.........
Special revenue funds ...

Total fund bala

Tatal liabilities

NICCS (e

and fund balances ..o iinieinens

Community Stormwater
General Redevelopment Drainage

1,496,160 424,106 967.866
206,248 0 49,066
43,364 0 O
370,492 0 0
59,700 0 0
412,660 0 50,000
2,588,624 424,106 1,066,932
314,852 3.782 272,450
188,809 0 0
4,410 0 0
0 59,700 0
508,131 63,482 272,450
11,820 420 0
309,700 0 0
12,479 0 0
0 0 0
1,746,494 0 G
o 360,204 794,482
2,080,493 360,624 794,482
2,588,624 424,106 1,066,932

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement 3

Nonmajor Total
Goveramental Governmental
Funds Funds
362,162 3,450,294
0 255,314
0 43,364
1} 370,452
0 59,700
56,058 518,718
618,220 4,697,882
40,437 640,521
0 188,869
240 4,650
039700
49,677 893,740
253,694 265,934
0 309,700
26,448 38,927
265,229 265,229
0 1,746,494
23,172 1,177,858
568,543 3,804,142
618,220 4,697,882
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RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Statement 3A
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Fund balances - total governmental funds ..........ccooooovioiier v ere e $ 3,804,142

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the fUNAS....oooviieer e eeen 16,754,532

Delinquent tax revenue deferred in governmental activities are recognized
in the period in which they are earned, regardless of the date of their
ANHCIPATEd TECEIPL. ..o et 43,364

Negative net pension obligation reported in the Municipal Firefighters'
Pension Trust FURL. ..o et serer et e st ee e 54,885

Long-term liabilities, including notes payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

These liabilities and other debt related deferred charges consist of

the following:

NOES PAYADIC. ..ottt et e et e e eee e e e eate e re e et anan (5,730,088)

Accrued interest payable (24,853)

Unamortized debt costs............... 10,400

Compensated abSences. ..o e e —————— (651,608) {6,396,149)
Net assets of goVernmental ACtVIHES .o..oviciii i et ee e $ e L 4,260,774

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Community Stormwater
General Redevelopment Drainage
Revenue:
TAXES vovevrieesieaveaearsarsen s et ettt e bt re e 3,703,531 133,588 0
Licenses and permils ..oy 277,733 0 0
INtergOVErnMENtal .....vii v e e aan 1,169,217 282,498 50,000
Charges for SEEVICES v isesesr e errssaess s aasan 149,903 0 531,867
Fines and forfeitures e 46,294 0 0
MISCEIANCOUS L.oevivie ettt erasan 105,137 6,062 6,881
TOMal FEVENUER (v 5,451,815 422,148 588,748
Expenditures:
Current:
General ZOVEIMIMENT vovvviviieeei e esreraatas a1 s 1,428,653 o 0
Public safely .o e 3,280,112 ¢ 4]
TIANSPOITALION cvivierieecieieiee et ecreeieetete et enerstesrerrares 991,204 0 ¢
Economic envirOnmEnt ...........c..cocvevvvirivecvrneinrinioraseesrnsenns 0 327,646 0
Physical environment ... i 0 0 3,144,603
Culture/Tecreation «.. e ee e 853,109 0 0
Capital Cutlay:
Culture/Teereation oo e 0 0 0
Debt Service:
Principal relirement ... 176,756 0 0
Interest and fiscal Charges .....ocoovvveveiieciieee v 33824 0 0
Total expendiiures oo 6,763,638 327,646 3,144,603
Excess of revenue over
(under) expendifil'es ... (1,311,843} 94,302 (2,555.853)
Other Financing Sources (1Jses):
TEPANSTRIS 1Y crvivirres v e s s e e et s s s aseran et e v st as e breens 725,866 0 332,342
TTANSTETS QUL 11vvvieei ettt ee et (9,516) 0 (384,234)
Capital-related debt issued ..o, 0 0 2,770,179
Total other financing sources {USes) ...ovcvvvvrinieierennes 716,350 0 2,718,287
Net changes in fund balances........coviivncnnnes (595,493} 94,502 162,432
Fund balances, beginning of year .........ccoivenrminierienninneniennn 2,675,986 266,122 632,050
Fund balances, end 0f year .....cccve i 2,080,493 360,624 794,482

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

21




Statement 4

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

0 3,837,119

0 277,733

509,333 2,011,268

0 681,770

9,597 55,891

13,738 131,818
532,888 6,995,599

0 1,428,653

44,937 3,325,049
87,900 1,079,104

0 327,646

0 3,144,603

600 853,709

148,142 148,142
286,843 463,599

90,030 123,854
o 658,452 10,894,359
(125,564 (3,898,760)

393,750 1,451,958
(348,208) (741,958)

0 2,770,179

45,542 3,480,179
(80,022) (418,581)

648,565 4,222,723
568,543 3,804,142

]
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, Statement 4A
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Net change in fund balances « total governmental TUNGAS .o rersere et e e eeseeeseeesseans h (418,581)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expenses for the
current period:

Capital cutlay expenditures.......ccocvie e 3,666,353
General fixed assets disSposals. ... (37,537)
DePIeciation EXPEIISC...oiiiiveiieeieeetereiecserstereseetorstassossestseee et eseeeeeeeeeeeens {631,641 2,997,175

Bond and lean proceeds are reported as financing sources in the governmentai funds,
however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Debt
proceeds issued in the current PEriod .o e (2.770,179)

Repayment of bond and nete principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Principal
repayment in the CUrrent PeriGd ..ot 463,649

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds (increase in delinquent taxes)............. (5,638}

Increase in negative net pension obligation reported in the Municipal Firefighters'
Pension Trust FUnd.. ...t e s et aa e e 54,885

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the govermmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normatly paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, however,
which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported
regardless of when financial resources are available. In addition, interest on Jong-term
debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather
than as it accrues. This adjustment is for the foflowing items:

Change in compensated absences Habifities.,....ovweivic i crersseiens, (26,977)
Change in accrued interest on bonds and notes payable .o......ccoooco.e..... (24,853) (51.830)
Change in net assets of gOVErNMeENtal ACHVIHES .ovvieiiiervrieeiceeeeeer e e eesesr s ssn st 3 269,481

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Statement 5

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and Saolid
Sewer Waste Total
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..., $ 2,763,628 164,606 2,928,234
ACCOUnts receivable ..ot 357,383 141,689 499,072
Due from other fUndS... ..o e 4,410 0 4,410
Due from other ZOVEIMmMENtS.....couvviveninieierceeieseeeeniiioreeens 0 1,479,833 1,479,833
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents......c..coeiriiciceeee i 2,252,360 G 2,252,360
Total CUrTent 8SSEIS ...ovvvivviiiricseie et 5,377,781 1,786,128 7,163,909
Property and Equipment:
LTI ..ottt as s et e e e 154,739 0 154,739
Buildings and improvements... ..o sieiiesieseen 22,970,816 54,651 23,025,467
Machinery and eqUIPMIENt .....ocoooievriieirii e 6,387,393 644,662 7,032,055
29,512,948 699,313 30,212,261
Less: accumulated depreciation ..., (12,203,558) (0068,768) {12,872,326)
17,309,390 30,545 17,339,935
Construction i1 Progress. .. i eseneseene 238,822 0 238,822
Net property and equipment ... 17,548,212 30,545 17,578,757
Unamortized debt issuance Costs...cieceeeeererenen. 218,243 0 218,243
TOtal ASSCLS 1uoiiiieiceie e e 23,144,236 1,816,673 24,960,909
Liabilities;
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of fong-term debf...oiciieiiiiinicnns, 610,684 0 610,684
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..o, 275,597 567,916 843,513
Due 10 other funds. ..o 0 370,252 370,252
DefErTed FEVERUE ..o et eeeee e e vt e v snar e 630,051 0 630,051
Total current Habilities .....o.oooocv e 1,516,332 938,168 2,454,500
Long-term Debt:
Revenue bonds payable (neth.. v, 11,251,098 0 11,251,098
Notes payable (Net) ... e ee e 2,010,317 0 2,010,317
Total long-term debt.......cc.ccoveeivniieeccve e, 13,261,415 0 13,261,415
Total lHabilities. ..o e, 14,777,747 938,168 15,715,915
Net Assets:
invested in capital assets, net of related debt .o 3,894,356 30,545 3,924,901
Restricted for debt serviCe. it 136,975 0 136,975
Restricted for utility plant expansion.......c.venin, 2,053,381 0 2,053,381
UIEESITICIEG . e ieiee et evnr s seae s srrs st seras s sanen e esnessineseesane 2,281,777 847,960 3,129,737
Total NEL ASSES ot D 8,366,489 878.505 9,244,994

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS Statement 6
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the FFiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLLORIDA
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water and Solid
Sewer Waste Total
Operating Revenue:
Charges for Services:
W aATEE SA1ES. ettt ittt g 1,870,028 0 1,870,028
Sewer treatment Charges. ... 1,961,209 0 1,961,209
Waste disposal feeS...ivmiiiiciiie e v s 0 1,532,010 1.532.010
Connections, service and cut-off charges.........covevviereveveenn, 59,608 G 59,608
OUNET TEVERIUCS 1o teveernieseeee et ee st ees s eees e 193,925 135 194,060
Total operating revenue....coooovooeioe e, 4,084,770 1,532,145 5,616,915
Operating Expenses:
Personal SEIVICES wovoiiveice et et 981,126 0 981,126
Depreciation and amortization ..o 1,060,096 4,515 1,064,611
THHHIES oottt eeer et st ereseseane s 263,096 128 263,224
Materials and SUPPHES ovvveceeeccie e 253,579 3,178 256,757
Contractual SEIVICES ..o e s e eene oo oo 248,993 2,721,035 2,870,028
Maintenance and repairs ..o.oviiueesoe e, 102,275 1,012 103,287
OhEr CHAEES oot r e, 10,938 2,067 13.005
Bad debl eXPense. .o eeer e e arens 14,369 3,636 18,005
Total operating exXpenses .......ovvvireeieeeceieeeerenn, 2,934,472 2,735,571 5,670,043
Operating income {1088)........o.oooeeeee e 1,150,298 {1,203,426) (53,128)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
IETEST CAMTLIZS viieee ittt ee et e e e ien 67,037 10,675 77,712
Loss on disposal of property and equipment ............occovovenne. (7,619) 0 (7.619)
OPETANG ZFANTS cuiitie oo ee et re s e sse et 0 1,479,833 1,479,833
Inferest and debt eXPenSe. ...t (635,070) 0 (635,070)
Net NONOPErating reVeIlue. .. ......ovoeeeeeceeee e, (575,052) 1,490,508 914,856
Income before transfers. . oo 574,646 287,082 861,728
Transfer to General Fund.........c.ocoooooi i e (450,000) (260,000) (710,000)
Net iNcome (10SS). .. oo iere e 124,646 27,082 151,728
Capital contribUtionS.....coovveiiseieiiie e ee et 118,956 0 118,956
INet INCrease i NEf AS5E15. .. iirveveirresreressrsneersnseenes 243,602 27,082 270,684
Net assets, beginning 0f YEAT v eerenn 8,122 887 851,423 8,974,310
Net assets, end 0T YEAr .oovviiic e st $ 8,366,489 878.505 9,244,994

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the IFiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF NEW HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Statement 7

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water

and Selid
Sewer Waste Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received fTOm CUSTOMETS, ..o ievviiiseierire e e sseeeressnens 4,087,468 1,527,847 5,615,315
Cash paid for personal Services. oo (1,061,326) ¢ (1,661,326)
Cash paid to suppliers...........c.......... SO (867,830) {1,970,083) (2,837.913)
Net cash provided by operating activities....coveeeen, 2,158,312 {442,236) 1,716,076
Cash Flows From Noncapital and Related
Financing Activities:
Operating transfers (OUL) vovovvvver v s ssenssrecninens (450,000} (260,000) (710,000}
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
and related financing activities .....cocoivvvvrvimvninennns (450,600) (260.,000) (710,000)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Capital confributions.......cccceeieveeieieven e 118,956 0 118,956
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .c..cvvirernnnnns (468,741) 0 (468,741)
Debt reduction outlays......coe e (597,776) 0 (597,776)
Interest paid on capital debt obligations.......ccoo v, (636,161) 0 (636,161)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital
and related financing activities ..o, (1,583,722) 0 (1,583,722)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Tnterest reCeIVEd .o s 67,037 10,675 77.712
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents ... 191,627 (691,561) (499,934)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ........................ 4,824,361 856,167 5,680,528
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year .......ccccccvervivrnevinvinnns 5,015,988 164,606 5,180,594
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
CUITEIE BSSEIS..ueeiiiieriiieriareriviererenrrearesasesntsentonssessesnsnesrasarnson: 2,763,628 164,606 2,928,234
RESIFICIEM ASSEIS. 1 visrrrrcsreiieiinisrrr s sie s srssresss s rastssasassainenes 2,252,360 0 2,252,360
Total cash and cash equivalents...............ccoovcevinne 5,015,988 164,606 5,180,594

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF NEW HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water
and Solid
Sewer Waste Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating iNCoOME (10SS) <o evvseeersress e seasen 1,150,298 (1,203,426) (53.128)
Adjustments 1o reconcile net operating
income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.......eoeveeeecreereeeeene. 1,060,096 4,515 1,064,611
Provision for bad debts.......ccooceoeiviiii s 14,369 3,636 18,005
Changes in assets and liabilities: 0
Accounts receivable ... {14,664) (4,298) {18,962)
Due from other Tunds oo ev v (6,180) 0 (6,180)
Accounts Payable s 15,461 387,085 402,546
Accrued labilities. ..o, (80.200) ¢ (80,200}
Due to other funds ... 1,770 370,252 372,022
Customer deposits ..o, 17,362 0 17,362
Nef cash provided by operating activities................. 2,158,312 (442,236) 1,716,076

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Statement 8

Assets:

Cash and cash equIvalents ...

Accounis receivable:

FIOM BEOKEIS. .. . ettt et r et e s e b et e st s et s ansabenassrssatanens
From emIplOyer. et et e e
FTOM SR e vttt et ettt e et e e et e e s et et s eeeeaeenease e s et eneseons

Investments, at fair value

Maoney market funds ...
UL, TTEASUTIES ..ottt e et et et b et mee s e
ULS, SOVEIIMEIE BECNICIES 1ovruiiiceicrrmreceer e eieceee s e seceesteraseees e aessness s s eneeneee
ULS. corporate debt obligations .. ..o
U.S. corporate equity SECUITHES ...c.cvveirirriicririiasiane s s s sreesssassssesesee e

TOtA] TIVESUNIEIIIS viitiriit ettt ee e eeereeeeeesreerereeerenaraennene

TOLA] ASSCIS 1eieiiii et e sttt ee e

[iabilities:

ACCoUnts PaYADIE........oco s

Net assets:

Held in trust for pension benefits.............cooivrcinnicirnrr e

$ 751

20,236
2,178
11,602

e 31,804

75,820

285,012
440,306
881,095
1,392,373
3,846,077

6,844,863

6,921,434

$ 6,913,514

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Statement 9

Additions:
Contributions from;
Employer
State

Investment income:

Net realized and unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) in fair value of investments
Interest and dividend earnings
Less: investment management fees
Total investiment income
Total additions

Deductions:

Benefit payments
Refunds/withdrawels

Net increase (decrease)

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:
Beginning of year

End of year

204,090
113,335

169,934

356,145
183,989
340,134

(71,589)

429,118
133,327
37,225

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida (the “City”), have been prepared in conformance with
accounting principals generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
promuigating govermnmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of
the City’s significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City is a municipal corporation created by the Laws of Florida, Chapter 67-1274, located in Volusia
County, The City was originally incorporated under the general laws of Florida on July 1, 1901 (Records
of Incorporations, Volusia County, Vol. I, p. 101). This incorporation was validated in 1903 by Laws of
Florida, Chapter 5346 (1903). The legislative branch of the City is composed of an elected five-member City
Commission consisting of the Mayor and four commissioners. The City Commission is governed by the City
Charter and by state and local laws and regulations. The City Commission is responsible for the
cstablishment and adoption of policy. The execution of such policy is the responsibility of the Commission-
appointed City Manager,

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows
of the applicable funds controlled by or dependent upon the City (the primary government). In cvaluating
the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units for which the entity
may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be included within the City’s {inancial statements,

Blended Component Unit. The City of Holly Hill Community Redevelopment Fund was created by
Ordinance 2426 to account for the receipt and expenditure of property tax revenues from the tax increment
financing district to support City redevelopment. Although legally separate, the same clected City
Commission members serve as the governing board of the Community Redevelopment Fund. Since the City
is financially accountable for the activities of the Fund, its governing board is the same, and its relationship
to the City is significant, its financial activities are reported on a blended basis as if it were part of the
primary government as a special revenue fund.

B. New Accounting Prenouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement of Accounting Standards No.
40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (SGAS 40). The City elected to implement the provisions of
SGAS 40 for the year ended September 30, 2004, Statement 40 modifies and updates the disclosure
requirements related to deposit risks, custodial credit risk and concentrations of credit risk for all state and
local governmental entities. It requires the disclosure of investiments to be organized by investment type and
does not allow the aggregating of dissimilar investments into a single investment type. The adoption of
Statement No. 40 had no substantial effect on the City’s basic financial statements.
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C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements, comprised of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities, report aggregated information for the overall government for all of the activities of the primary
government and the discretely presented component units. The primary government is reported in two
columns to separately report governimental activities from business-type activities. These statements de not
report fiduciary funds or fiduciary component units such as retirement trust funds. Those activities are
reported only in fund financial statements. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements as is further disclosed below under the heading Interfund Activity Eliminations and
Reclasstfications.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange revenues are reported separately from business-type activities, which are financed wheolly or
partially by fees charged to external parties for goods or services and are reported in enterprise funds.

The Statement of Net Asscts presents the overall government’s financial position at year-end. The Statement
of Activities presents direct expenses of a given function or segment offset by program revenues for the fiscal
reporting period. The resulting net expense or revenue is then totaled and offset by general revenues
producing the aggregate change in net assets for the period. Program revenues include (1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given function or segment of the government, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
nouexchange revenues not properly included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual business-type funds are reported in separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

D.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earmed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Govermnmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period
or as soon enough thercafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are colliected within 120 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments,
are recorded only when payment is due.

31




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA.

Taxes, intergovernmental revenue, licenses and permits, charges for services, and interest associated with
the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the government.

Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from nonexchange iransactions are
recognized in accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. Nonexchange transactions are
grouped into four classes, based on their prinecipal characteristics. The accounting treatment for each type
of transaction is as follows:

Derived Tax Revenue, defined as assessments imposed on exchange transactions. Examples inciude:
sales taxes, franchise tax, utility taxes, ctc. Assets from derived tax revenue are recognized in the
period when the exchange transaction on which the tax is imposed or when resources are received,
whichever occeurs first. Revenues are recognized, net of estimated uncollectible amounts, in the same
period that the assets are recognized. Resources received in advance are recorded as deferred revenue
until the period of the exchange.

Imposed Nonexchange Revenue, result from assessments on nongovernmental entities, other than
assessments on exchange transactions. Examples inciude: ad valorem (property) taxes, fines and
penalties, and property forfeitures. Assets from imposed nonexchange revenues are recognized in the
period when an enforceable legal claim to the assets arises or when the resources are received,
whichever occurs first. Property taxes are recognized in the period for which the taxes are levied. All
other imposed nonexchange revenues are recognized in the same period that the assets are recognized.

Government-mandated Nonexchange Transactions, frequently establish eligibility requirements before
a transaction can occur. Examples include federal awards and state financial assistance. Until the
requirements are met, the recipient does not have a receivable and the recognition of revenue received
in advance is deferred. The providers (usually federal, state, and county governments) often offer
resources on a reimbursement (“expenditure-driven™) basis at the time the recipient has incurred
allowable costs under the applicable program.

Voluntary Nonexchange Transactions, result from legislative or contractual agreements other than
exchanges, entered into willingly by two or more parties. Examples include certain grants,
entitlements, and donations by nongovernmental entities. Principal characteristics of these types of
transactions are (1) they are not imposed on the provider or recipient, and (2) fulfillment of eligibility
requirements is essential for a transaction to occur. Assets and revenues are recognized when all
applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources received in
advance are reported as deferred revenue.

Proprietary fund and pension trust fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
ligbilities are incurred. Based on the accounting and reporting standards set forth in Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporiing for Proprietary Funds and other
Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting”, the City has opted to apply only those
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accounting and reporting pronouncements issued by the GASB subsequent to November 30, 1989, as it
pertains te the accounting for proprietary fund activity.

The City’s accounts are organized on the basis of funds each of which is considered a separate accounting
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate,
Government resources are zliccated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The focus of the
governmental and proprietary fund financial staterrients is on major funds, as defined and defermined based
on criteria established under Governmental Accounting Standards Boards Statement No. 34.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the principal fund of the City which accounts for all financial
transactions not accounded for in other funds. The majority of current aperating expenditures of the
City other than proprietary fund activities are financed through revenues received by the General Fund.

Community Redevelopment Trust Fund - The Community Redevelopment Trust Fund is a special
revenue fund established by the City for the economic development of designated arcas of the City that
receives special incremental ad-valorem tax levies to pay for rehabilitation and redevelopment of the
specified arca in need of improvement to sustain the tax base.

Stormwater Drainage Fund - The Stormwater Drainage Fund is a special revenue fund used to account
for user charges assessed to citizens for the operation, maintenance and improvement of the City’s
stormwater drainage systems. Federal awards and state financial assistance are also a major source
of revenue to assist with the financing of capital improvements to these facilities.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water and Sewer System - The Water and Sewer System Fund accounts for the costs and recovery of
costs in the form of user charges related to the production, treatment and distribution of potable water,
along with the collection, treatment and disposal of sewage waste with the City. The maintenance and
improvement of utility plant required to provide these goods and services are financed primarily from
user charges. Physical plant expansion is financed primarily from revenue bond obligations and other
long-term debt borrowings.

Solid Waste Fund - The Solid Waste Fund provides the community with refuse and recycling services
provided by third-party contracted vendors, the costs of which are primarily recovered by user charges.

Additionally, the City reports the following non-major fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
{other than special assessments, or capital projects) which are legally restricted to finance particular
functions or activities of the City, These funds include the Law Enforcement Trust Fund, Youth
Center Fund, Community Development Block Grant Fund, and the Local Law Enforcement Block
Grant Fund.
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Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.  This fund type is used
to provide for the debt servicing of the City’s outstanding State Revolving Fund Loan commitments,
dated January 30, 2001, September 10, 2001, July 24, 2002 and June 24, 2003,

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for the firancial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
proprietary and trust funds).

Pension Trust Funds - Pension trust funds (Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Fund and the
Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund) are accounted for by the City to provide data on the
accumulation of financial resources to pay pension benefits to qualified participants in the City’s
Police and Fire pension trust funds.

Amounts reported in the funds as interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated in the
governmental and business-type activities columns, except for the net residval amounts due between
governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances due to and due from these
different types of activities within the primary government.

The City reports as program revenues: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and confributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary fund’s principal ongoing activities. For the City, operating revenues come from munjcipal
golf course greens fees and related charges and refuse and recycling collection fees for sanitation services,
which are the prineipal ongoing operations of the City’s Golf Course and Sanitation Fund. Operating
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

E.  Asscts, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

The City's investment policies are governed by state statutes and focal resolution. These policies authorize
the City to invest in bonds, notes, certificates of indcbtedness, treasury bills, or other securities which are
guaranfeed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, interest bearing savings accounts,
interest bearing certificates of deposit and interest bearing time deposits.
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All of the City’s investments are reported at fair value, with the exception of investments in the 2a7-like
pools (State Board of Administration Local Government Surplus Trust Fund Pool) which are stated at cost,
or amortized cost, and are the same as the fair value of pool shares. All fiduciary (police and fire pension)
fund mvestiments are stated at fair value,

2. Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)
or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activitics and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances,” when applicable.

All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts, which is
based upon management's analysis of historical trends. Utility operating sales are gencrally recognized on
the basis of cycle billings rendered quarterly. Unbilled accounts receivable are accrued by the City at
September 30th, to recognize the sales revenues carned between the last meter reading date made in
mid-September through the end of the fiscal year.

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

When determined matcrial, the cost of inventory is accounted for on the consumption basis wherein
inventories are charged as expenditures when used, rather than when purchased. All inventories are valued
at cost, which approximates market, by using the first-in, first-out valuation method. The effect of this
method is to flow the costs of the materials and supplies in the order in which they are purchased and to
assign a baiance sheet inventory valuation more nearly at current replacement value.

Certain payments fo vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and arc recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements,

4. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s revenue note obligations, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets in the government-wide financial statements because their use
is limited by applicable fegal indentures imposed by applicable bond covenants and other legal indentures.
The restricted assets are used to report resources set aside to 1) provide areserve for debt service, 2) provide
a reserve for maintenance and replacement costs, and 3) acquire capital assets.

3. Capital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets. The terms general capital assets
and general infrastructure assets relate only to the assets associated with governmental activities, Whereas
the terms capital assets and infrastructure assets relate to all such assets belonging to the City. To case
implementation efforts, GASB Statement No. 34, provides the City with an extended transition period for
reporting existing general infrastructure assets. However, the City has elected fo report all known
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infrastructure assets and related depreciation expense on these assets, for those assets acquired up to, and
including , the year of implementation of the pronouncement in the entity-wide statement of net assets and
statement of activities.

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial individual cost of $1,000 or more and an
estimated useful life of more than one-year. The capitalization policy for building and improvements other
than buildings require assets with an initial cost to be $5,000 or more before it is capitalized. For all
infrastructure assets, costs must exceed $5,000 before the assets are capitalized. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost, if purchased or constructed. Contributed assets arc recorded at
fair market value on the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized if they meet the doilar threshold above for capitalization.

Proprietary fund capital assets that are constructed include construction period interest that is capitalized net
of interest earned on unexpended construction funds in accordance with the applicable provisions of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 62, and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Maintenance and repairs of property and replacements and renewals of items determined to be fess than units
of property, are charged fo operating expenses.

Depreciation is reported for the primary government using the straight-line method (half-year convention in
year of acquisition) caleulated on a service-life basis to amortize the cost of the asset over their estimated
economic useful lives, which are as follows:

Assets Years
Buildings . ..o 20-50 years
Improvements other than buildings ........... ... .. .. ... .. ...... 10-50 years
Equipment . ... 3-30 years
Infrastriucture . . ... o 20-50 years

6. Compensated Absences

The portion of employees payroil costs paid subsequent to year-end attributable to services performed prior
to year-end, including accumulated unpaid vacation and sick-leave, is recorded and recognized as a current
liability. The portion of the liability for compensated absences attributable to periods beyond the current
year are recognized as a long-term liability.

Employee vacation leave is based upon the mumber of years of employment with the City and a portion must
be used as time off annually and the remainder can be used as time off or accrued. The maximum amount
accrued varies with the general and fire personnel and the police personnel, 90 days and 93.5 days,
respectively. Upon termination, the employee receives a cash benefit equal to the number of days acerued

based on the employee's current wage rate,

Sick leave is granted to all full time employees. General and fire personnel can accumulate, at a rate of one
day per month, up to a maximum of 90 days. Upon retirement or death, employees are paid 100% of their
accumulated unpaid sick leave. Upon resignation, only those employees with 15 years of service are paid
50% of their accumulated unpaid sick leave. Police personnel are granted extended leave to be used for
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illnesses involving absences of three or more days. The extended leave accrues at a rate of four hours per
month. There is no maximum accumulated amount, however payment is based on the number of years of
service with a maximum of 825 hours.

7. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues are reported when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and
"available" criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are
received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the
incurrence of quatifying expenditures. Insubsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met,
or when the City has a legal claim to the rescurces, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue
is recognized.

8. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprictary fund type statement of net assets. Bond discounts and debt issuance costs are deferred and
amortized over the term of the bonds using the bond outstanding method which approximates the effective
inferest method. Unamortized bond discounts are presenied in aggregate on the financial statements as a
reduction of the carrying cost of the related long-term debt. Unamortized debt issuance costs are presented
asother assets. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current peried. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reporied as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

10. Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and
lizbilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual
results could vary from the estimates assumed in preparing the financial statements.
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NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A.  Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets:

Following the governmental fund balance sheet is a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.
A detailed explanation of these differences is provided in this reconciliation.

B.  Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities:

Following the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances, there
1s a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets
of governmental activities asreported in the government-wide statement of activities. A detailed explanation
of these differences is provided in this reconciliation.

No1e 3- STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A.  Budgetary Information

Annual budgets for all governmental and proprietary funds were adopted in compliance with Fiorida law.
The basis on which the budgets are prepared is consistent with the basis of accounting utilized by the various
fund types. The governmental funds' budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
proprietary funds’ budgets are prepared on a full accrual basis of accounting. The City uses the following
procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the accompanying financial statements;

* On or about July lst, the City Manager submits a preliminary budget to the City
Commission for the ensuing fiscal year.

* Budget workshop sessions are scheduled by the City Commission, as needed.

« A general summary of the budget and notice of public hearing is published in & local
newspaper.

« Prior to October 1st, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.
* The City Commission, by ordinance, may make supplemental appropriations in excess of
those estimated for the year up to the amount of available revenue in accordance with

Sections 54 to 57 of the City Charter. Prior to the end of the fiscal year, supplemental
appropriations are made for unanticipated spending requirements by the Commission.

+ The City Commission must approve all inter-departmental budget amendments and/or
appropriations transfers.
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+ The City Manager may transfer funds between line-item appropriations within a
department at the request of a department head in accordance with Article I, Section 30-
27 of the City’s Code of Ordinances.

* Budgetary control is exercised at the department {evel.
» Every appropriation lapses at the close of the fiscal year.
B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

For the year ended September 30, 2004, total fund expenditures exceeded budgetary appropriations in the
nonmajor Debt Service Fund by $372,871. The over-expenditures in this fund were funded in their entirety
by transfers from the Stormwater Drainage Fund greater than amounts anticipated.

NoTE4-ProPERTY TAX CALENDAR

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and school
district property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Finance
Director. The laws of the state regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent property
valuation method statewide. State Statutes permit municipalitics to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10
mills. The millage rate assessed by the City was 4.08002 mills for the year ended September 30, 2004.

The property tax calendar is as follows:
Valuation Date January 1

Property Appraiser prepares the assessment roll with vatues as of
January 1, submits preliminary roll for approval by the State
and notifics each taxing authority of their respective valuations. Juiy 1

Within 35 days of certification of value, the City must advise the

Property Appraiser of the prior year millage rate, current year

proposed millage rate, current year rolled-back rate and the date,

time and meeting place of the tentative budget hearing. August 4

City Comunission holds two required public hearings and adopts a
budget and ad valorem tax millage rate for the coming fiscal year. September 13

Property Appraiser certified the assessment roll and all real and
tangible personal property taxes are due and payable (Levy date), November |

A Notice of Taxes is mailed to each property owner on the

assessment roll. Taxes are paid November 2002 through
March 2003, with the following applicable discounts: November through March
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Month Paid Discount Percent
November 4
December 3
January 2
February 1
March 0

All unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property become
delinquent. April 1

A list of unpaid tangible personal property taxes and a list of unpaid
real property taxes are advertised. April/May

Tax certificates are sold on all real estate parcels with unpaid real
property taxes (Lien date). June 1

A court order is obtained authorizing the seizure and sale of

personal property if the taxpayer faiis to pay the delinquent taxes August 28
NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
At September 30, 2004, the City had the following investments and maturitics.

Investment Maturies {Years)

Fair Less From From Over
Investment Type Value Than | i-5 6-10 10
Repurchase agreements .. .......... § 2,035,600 2,035,000 - - -
L.ocal government surplus funds
trustfund . ........... ... ..... 7,371,172 F371,172 - - -
Money market funds .............. 285,012 285,012 - - -
U.S. Treasuries .................. 440,306 170,094 248,881 21,331 -
US.agencies . ............ouui.. 881,065 239,775 131,757 - 509,563
Domestic corporate bonds .. ........ 1,392,373 67,408 029,346 346,074 49 545
Domestic corporale equities ..... ... 3,846,077 3.846.077 - - -
Totals ... ... ... ... ..... $16.251.035 14.014.538 _ 1.309.984 367.405 559.108

Interest Rate Risk. Generally, the City limits its exposure to fair value losses arising from increases in interest
rates by limiting the investment of its operating funds in investments with maturities of less than one year.
Substantially all of the City’s surplus funds are invested in the City’s pooled cash accounts, which are
included in overnight repurchase agreements, or in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund.
Investments held in the City’s Police and Fire pension trust funds are generally held to maturity to provide
a stable investment interest rate platform which is vital to the projection of actuarial pension costs in the
future. While potential current period fair value losses can occur with these investments in any given year,
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the ultimate realization of fair value losses is mitigated by the holding of these investments to maturity.
Investments in U.S. Treasuries typically include discounted, fixed-price notes and bonds that mature within
one to five years. The fair value of these short-term investments are less sensitive to interest rate increases
since they arc held to maturity. Investments in U.S. agencies typically include long-term, fixed-rate
collateralized inortgage obligations with maturities of greater than ten years. Their fair values are particularly
sensitive to prepayments by mortgagees, which may result from a decline in inferest rates, and inversely
sensitive to changes in interest rates. Investments in fixed rate domestic corporate bonds are generally made
to guaranty the production of cash flows necessary to fund the plan’s required payments and operating
expenses. These fixed rate investiments carn slightly higher rates of return, whicl are necessary to support
the plan’s blended interest rate assumptions. Their fair values are inversely sensitive fo changes in interest
rates.

Credit Risk. The provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, require that the investment activity of the
City be conducted in accordance with a written investment plan adopted by the goveming body. Under that
plan, the City’s basic allowable investment instruments include: Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund
{a 2a-7 like fund); negotiable direct obligations of, or obligations the principal and interest of which are
unconditionally guaranteed by, the U.S. Governiment; interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in
banks organized under the laws of this state, in nationat banks organized under the laws of the United States
and doing business and situated in this state, in savings and loan associations which are under state
supervision or in federal savings and loan associations [ocated in this state and organized under federal law
and federal supervision; money market accounts that invest in U.S. Government obligations; obligations of
Federal Farm Credit Banks, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, including Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation participation certificates; or the Federal Home Loan Bank or its distriet banks or
obligations guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association; obligations of the Federal National
Mortgage Association including Federal National Mortgage Association participation certificates and
mortgage pass-through certificates guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association.

Investments in the City’s pension trust funds are limited by state statutes {Chapters 175 and 185, Florida
Statutes) and by an investment policy adopted by the funds® Board of Trustees. The basic allowable
mvestment nstruments include obligations of, or obligations the principal and interest of which are guaranteed
by, the U.S. Government; time deposits or savings accounts of a national bank, a state bank insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or a savings, building and loan association insured the Federal Savings
and Loan Insurance Corporation; money market accounts that invest in U.S. Government obligations; bonds
issued by the State of Isracl; and bonds, stocks or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by a
corporation organized under the laws of the U.S., any state or organized territory of the U.S., or the District
of Columbia.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits
may not be returned to it. Pursuant to the applicable provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, The Florida
Security for Public Deposits Act ("the Act™), the State of Florida, Department of Financial Services, Division
of Treasury, Bureau of Collateral Management have established specific requirements relative to the security
and collateralization for public deposits. Accordingly, banks qualifying as a public depository in the State
of Florida must adopt the necessary procedures outlined in these statutes and meet all of the requirements of
this chapter to be designated by the State’s Chief Financial Officer as eligible to receive deposits from
municipal depositors. Collateral having a market value equal to 50% of the average daily balance for each
month of all public deposits in excess of any applicable depository insurance is required to be pledged or
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deposited with the State’s Chief Financial Officer to secure such deposits. Additional collateral, up to a
maximum of 125% may be required if deemed necessary under the conditions set forth in the Act. Securitics
cligible to be pledged as collateral are generally limited to obligations of the United States government and
any state thereof and are held in the name of the State Chief Financial Officer’s office. Compliance with the
provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, is monitored by a Qualified Public Depository Oversight Board
with members appointed by the State Chief Financial Officer.

At September 30, 2004, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits in the Local Government Surplus Funds
Trust Fund was $7,371,172, all of which was covered by coliateral securities in accordance with the Act. The
carrying amount of the City’s $2,000,000 investment in repurchase agreements was collateralized with
securities held by the Trust Department of the City’s depository bank in their name. All remaining deposits
of the City were adequately covered by federal depository insurance. All investments held by the City’s
police and fire pension trust funds were uninsured, unregistered and held by the Plans’ brokerage firms, who
are also the counterparty for these particular securities.

NoTE 6 - RECEIVABLES - NiET

The City’s accounts receivable at Septernber 30, 2004, consists of the following:

Governmental Activities;
General Fund:

Delinquent taxes receivable ............. . ... ........ $ 43,364
Accounts receivable-franchise/utility service payments . . . 155,991
Lien coilections receivable ... ... ... . .. . ... 44 011
Employees purchase program . .............. .. . . ... .. 24,494
Other miscellaneous receivables . ... ... ... . ... 18,719
286,579
Less allowance for doubtful accounts . .. ............ .., (36,967)
Total General Fund accounts receivable, net ............ 3 249,612

Special Revenue Fund:
Stormwater Drainage Fund:

Accountsreceivable ..., ... .. L 3 54,823

Less allowance for doubtful accounts .. ... ........... (5,757
Total special revenue fund accounts receivable,net . ... .. .. 49.066
Total governmental activities accounts receivable, net . ... .. 5 208.678
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Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer Fund:

Billed accounts receivable ... . . i Ny 307,174
Unbilled accounts receivable ........ ..., 103,434
Solid Waste:
Billed accounts receivable ... . 113,206
Unbilled accounts receivable ........ ... ... ... ... ... 43,973
567,787
Less allowance for doubtful accounts . .. ............... (68,715)
Total business-type activities accounts receivable, net .. .. 3 499.072

NoTg 7 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Individual fund short-term interfund receivables and payables expected to be repaid within the next fiscal year
at September 30, 2004, are as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Law Enforcement Trust h 240
Solid Waste 370,252
Water and Sewer Genersl 1410
Total § 374,902

Long-term advances to and from other funds not expected to be repaid within the next fiscal year at September
30, 2004, are as follows:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Amount

General Fund Community Redevelopment P 59.700
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Interfund transfers between the City’s governmental and business-type funds during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004, are as follows:

Transfer Transfer
Fund To From
Governmental Activities:
General Fund:
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant .............. $ 9,516 0
Law Enforcement Trust ........ .. ... ... .. ..., ... 0 2,439
Conmmunity Development Block Grant ............. 0 13,427
Waterand Sewer ... ... t] 450,000
SofidWaste ... ... ... . . G 260,000
Law Enforcement Trust:
General Fund .. ... ... .. ... 2,439 0
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant:
General Fund ... ... 0 9,516
Community Development Block Grant:
General Fund . ... ... .. . 13,427 0]
Stormwater Drainage . .......... ... . ... . ... .. 332,342 0
Stormwater Drainage:
Conumunity Development Block Grant ............. 0 332,342
Debt Service . ... ... e, 384,234 0
Debt Service:
Stormwater Drainage ........ .. ... ... . ... 4] 384.234
Totals - governmental activities ................... § 741,958 1,451,958
Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer:
General ... . $ 450,000 0
Solid Waste:
General .. 0. ... . 260,000 0
Totals - business-type activities .............. ..., 710,000 1,451,958
Totals -all activities . ... .o o $1451.958 1,451,958
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NOTE 8- CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of the capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2004, is as follows:

Balances Balances
(9/30/03 Addition Delctions 09/30/04
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land . ... $ 1,950,539 0 0 1,950,539
Construction work in progress . ........ 1,992,015 _ 2,785,342 0 4777357
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,942,554 2.785.342 0 6,727,896
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings . ..... ... .. .. .. ... 4,042,446 214,584 0 4,257,030
Improvements other than buildings ... .. 2,026,365 38,914 0 2,065,279
Machinery and equipment . ........... 2,934,087 252,296 159,333 3,027,050
Infrastructure . ..................... 7.351.595 379.878 0 7731473
Total capital assets being depreciated ... _16.354.493 885,072 159,333 17,080,832
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings ............ ... ... ..... (735,223) (80,387) 0 (815,610)
Improvements other than buildings ... .. (656,783) (72,944) 0 (729,727)
Machinery and equipment ... ...... ... {1,639,243) (247,135) (117,136)  (1,769,242)
Infrastructure . .......... ... ... ..... (3,508,441 (231.176) 0 (3,739,617
Total accumulated depreciation . ... .. .. (6,539.690) (631,642) (117.136) (7.054,196)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 9,814,803 254,030 42,197 10,026,636
Governmental activities capital assets, net  $13.757.357 3,039,372 42,197 16,754.532
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land .. ... ... ... . $ 134,739 0 0 154,739
Construction work in progress .. ....... 238,716 452,367 452,261 238,822
Total capital assets not being depreciated 393.455 452.367 452,261 393561
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings ........ ... ... ... ... 10,855,040 44,707 ¢ 10,899,747
Improvements other than buildings .. ... 11,917,101 233,632 45,013 12,125,720
Machinery and equipment . ........... 6,911,392 170,286 49,633 _ 7.032.055
Total capital assets being depreciated ... 29,683,533 468,635 94,646 30,057.522
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Balances Balances
09/30/03 Additions Deletions 09/30/04

Less accumulated depreciation for;

Buiidings .......... ... .. .. . ... {4,513,155) (221,717) 0 (4,734,872)
Improvements other than buildings .. ... {3,900,986) {401,590} (37,394) (4,265,182)
Machinery and equipment ............ (3,642,140 (279.763) (49.633) _(3.872.27)
Total accumulated depreciation .. ... ... (12,056 .281) (903,072) (87,027) (12,872,326)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 17.627.252 (434,437) 7,619 17,185,196
Business-type capital assets, net .. .., .. $18.020.707 17,930 459,880 17.578.757

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government . ... .. L L $ 65,083
Publicsafety ......... ... ... ... ... .. . 114,883
Transportation ......... ... .. ... el 164,484
Ecenomic environment . . . ... ... 1,385
Physical environment ........... ... ... ... ....... 125,442
Culture/recreation . .. ... ... ... 160.365
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities ... . §  631.642

Business-type activities:

Water and Sewer Fund . ... ... . $ 898,557
SolidWasteFund .. .......... . ... ... . ... 4,515
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities .. .. §  903.072
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Governmental Activities

The City has entered into several long-term debt obligations where it pledges specific income streams or
income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. During the current year, proceeds
of $2,780,579 were received to finance construction projects to expand the City’s primary stormwater
management and collection facilities under loans from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection
State Revolving Fund loan program. The City’s revenue obligations outstanding at September 30, 2004 are
summarized as follows:

Revenue Notes Payable:

Promissory notes payable to the State of Florida, Department of
Environmental Protection-Clean Water State Revolving Fund
Loan Agreement - 3.27% construction loan (§361,764) dated
January 30, 2001; 3.16% loan ($928,400) dated September 10,
2001; 2.12% loan ($1,579,330) dated July 24, 2002; 1.99%
foan (32,795,506} dated June 27, 2003, in the aggregate amount
of $5,665,000 for local stormwater pollution control and
drainage improvements, with combined total payments of
$181,675,due semi-annually, on January 15 and July 15,
comumencing on January 15, 2004 through 2024, secured with
stormwater management service charges ($252,797

currently payable) ... ... .. .. $ 5,182,243

Promissory notes payable to Sun Bank of Volusia County:

5.30% Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Note, Series 2001 dated

February 20, 2001; $23,692 due semi-annually through

2006; secured by all non-ad valorem revenues of the City

($32,408 currently payable) ....... .. ... . oo oL 32,408
4.84% Utility Service Tax Revenue Note, Series 19984, dated

April 14, 1998; payments of $58,775 fixed principal plus

interest due semi-annually through 2008; secured by utility

service tax revenues ($117,550 currently payable) ... .. 515,437

Total revenue notes payable . ... ... ... . . .. 5,730,688
Less: current maturities . ... .. it e e (402.755)

Governmental activities long-term revenue note debt . . .. 5,327,333

Long-term portion of obligation for compensated absences
payable by the City’s General Fund (net of $85,168 in
amounts currently payabley . ... ... ... ool 651.608

Total governmental activities long-termrdebt ..., ... .. 3 5.978.941
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A summary of changes in the City’s governmental activitics long-term debt for the year is as follows:

Balances Ralances
09/30/03 Additions Deletions 09/30/04

Notes Payable:
County of Volusia, Florida ........... b 15,389 0 15,389 0
Florida Department of Environmental
Protection-Clean Water State

Revolving Fund Loans .. ........... 2,688,507 2,780,579 286,843 5,182,243
Sun Bank of Volusia County:
5.30% promissory note . ............ 76,275 0 43 867 32,408
4.84% Utility Service Tax Revenue
Note, Series 1998A ... ... ...... 632,987 0 117,550 515,437
Obligation for compensated absences ...... 624,631 357,104 370,127 651.608
Totals ... ... ... ... ... . ... $4037.789 3,177,683 833.770 _ 6.381.696

Aggregate debt service requirements to maturity on governmental activities long-term debt obligations is as
follows:

Fiscal FDEP SunTrust SunTrust

Year SRF Loan 5.30% 4.84% Total
09/30/05 ... ... ... $ 372,606 33,470 141,075 547,151
09730706 ... . 353,616 0 135,385 489,001
09/30/07 ... 353,616 0 129,696 483,312
09/30/08 ... ... 353,616 0 124,007 477,623
09/30/09 .. ... ... .. . . 353,616 0 46,331 399,047
Thereafter ..................... 4,697,936 0 0 4,697,936
Total ... ... .. ... .. ... 6,485,006 33,470 576,494 7,094,970
Lessiinterest .. ... ... ... ... (1,302,763) (1,062) {61,057y (1.364.882)
Netamount . ................... $5,182.243 32,408 515,437 5.730.088

Under the terms of its revenue note obligations, the City has agreed to maintain certain restricted funds and
to comply with the covenants contained in such agreements which require specific actions to be taken by the
City. The resolution also provides that monics on deposit in the various accounts may be invested in
permitted investments, the definition of which includes various securities backed by the full faith and credit
of the U.S. Government or its agencies, depository accounts futly insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, commercial paper, money market funds,
and bankers’ acceptances meeting requirements defined in the bond resolution, units of participation in the
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, and any other investments allowed by Florida law.
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Business-Type Activities

The City’s business-type activities (Water and Sewer Utility Fund) long-term debt consists of the following
as of September 30, 2004:

Water and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002

2.00% to 5.00%, due serially t0 2022 ... ... .. ... ... ... .... $ 13,030,000
Less: current maturities ................. oo, {515.,000)
Long-term revenue bonds payable ...... ... .. ... ., 12,515,000
Plus; unamortized debt premium ... ... L 4,001
Less: deferred amount on advance refunding .. ... ... .. ..., {1.267.903)
Net long-term bonded debt . ... ... ... ... ... 11,251,098

State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection-Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan Agreement-3.11% construction
loan for wastewater infiltration and inflow correction project,
dated July 28, 1998, in the amount of $2,647,500, due semi-

annually beginning June 20071 through December 2020 ... ... 2,106,001
Less: current mMaturitics . ... i e { 95,684)
Net long-term notes payable . ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 2,010,317
Total long-term bonded debt and notes payable-net ............ 13,261,415

Long-term porticn of obligation for compensated absences
payabie by the City’s Water and Sewer Fund (net of $18,945 in
amounts currently payable) ... ... .. L 136,367
Total business-type activities long-termdebt . ... ... ... .. .. 3 13.397.782

A summary of changes in the City’s business-type activities long-tenm debt for the year is as follows:

Balances Balances
09/30/03 Additions Deletions 09/30/04

Water and Sewer System Refunding

Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 ...... $13,535,000 0 505,000 13,030,000
Notes Payabie - Florida Department of

Environmental Protection-Clean Water

State Revolving Fund Lean . ...... 2,198,777 0 02,776 2,106,001
Obligation for compensated absences . . . 187.854 25,972 77.459 136,367
Totals ... .. .. $15921.631 25972 675.235 _15.272.368
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The annual debt service and mandatory term bond amortization requirements to maturity is as follows:

Fiscal

Year Bonds Note Total
September 30,2005 . ... .. ... $ 1,072,482 186,240 1,258,722
September 30,2006 ... .. .. ... ... 1,074,606 186,240 1,260,846
September 30,2007 ... ... ... ... .. 1,078,706 186,240 1,264,946
September 30,2008 ... .. ... L. 1,076,656 186,240 1,262,896
September 30,2009 ... ... ... .. ... ... 1,076,882 186,240 1,263,122
Thercafter . ... .. ... ... . .. 13,996,123 1,770,513 15,766,636
Total requirements . ........................ 19,375,455 2,701,713 22,077,168
Lessiinterest .. ... i i (6,345,455) (595.712) (6.941.167)
Netamount ........... ... .. $13.030.000 2106001 _15.136.001

The authorization for the Water and Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 (the “Series 2002
bonds”) provides that the City will not issue additional obligations unless they are payable on a parity with
the Series 2002 bonds and only upon the conditions and within the limitations of the authorizing resolution.
The bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien upon and pledge of the net revenues derived from the
operation of the City’s water and sewer system. The bonds do not constitute general indebtedness of the City,
and the City is not obligated to levy any taxes for the payment thereof.

Under the terms of its bond resolution and revenue note obligations, the City has agreed to maintain certain
restricted funds and to comply with the covenants contained in such agreements which require specific actions
to be taken by the City. The resolution also provides that monies on deposit in the various bond accounts may
be invested in permitted investiments, the definition of which includes various securities backed by the full
faith and credit of the U.S. Government or its agencies, depository accounts fully insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, commercial paper,
money market funds, and bankers’ acceptances meeting requirements defined in the bond resolution, units
of participation in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, and any other investments allowed by
Florida law.

The note payable to the Statc of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection, State Revolving Fund Loan
1s secured by piedged revenues of the City; however, the lien on the pledged revenues is subordinate to the
right of payment and security to the Series 2002 bonds.
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NoTE 10 - PENSION PLANS
General Employees - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description. (Pre~-01/01/96 general employees) The City contributes to the Florida Retirement System
(the “FRS™) of the State of Florida, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement system
created in December, 1970, that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for municipalities and
other qualifying political subdivisions in the State of Florida. The pension plan, which 1s administered by the
State of Florida, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, provides retirement and disability
benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. All retirement legislation must comply with
Article X, Section 14 of the State Constitution and with Part VI, Chapter 121, F.S. Both of these provisions
require that any increase in retirement benefits must be funded concurrently on an actuarially sound basis.
The Florida Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Florida
Retirement System, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement, Cedars Executive Center, Building
C, 2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL. 32399-1560, or calling 850-488-5706.

Funding Policy. The FRS funding policy provides for required monthly employer coniributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll are adequate to accumulate
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Level percentage of payroil employer contribution rates,
established by state law, are determined using the entry-age actuarial funding method. If an unfunded
actuarial liability rcemerges, future plan benefit changes, assumption changes, and methodology changes are
amortized within 30 years, using level dollar amounts. Except for gains reserved for rate stabilization, it is
anticipated future actuarial gains and losses are amortized on a rolling 10% basis, as a level dollar armount.

The City funded all required contributions to the plan for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003,
and 2002, which were $90,677, $70,284, and $85,244, respectively. There were no employee contributions
made during these years. The fellowing is a summary of employer contribution percentages for qualifying
compensation paid to general participants/DROP participants in effect during each of the past three fiscal
years ended September 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002 by retirement plan periods:

Regular DROP
Emplovees Employees
From July 1, 2001 to June 30,2002 ............ 7.30% 12.67%
From July 1, 2002 to June 30,2003 .. .......... 5.76% 9.11%
From July 1, 2003 to June 30,2004 . ......... ... 7.39% 9.11%
From July 1, 2004 to September 30,2004 ....... 7.39% 9.11%

General Employees - Defined Contribution Plan

The City contributes to the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund, a defined contribution plan which is
administered by Florida League of Cities, Inc., P. O. Box 1757, Tallahassee, FL. 32302-1757. Under
Resolution No. 61 and Ordinance No. 2417, as amended, the City established this plan for all full time
employees hired on or after January 1, 1996 by revoking its participation in the Florida Retirement System
pursuant to Chapter 95-338, Laws of Florida with respect to such employees.
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The City, as the sponsoring employer, is responsible for amending pension provisions and contribution
requirements for the plan. The plan was amended during the year to include recent income tax Jaw provisions
applicable to employee benefit plans that were applicable to the plan. The City has the power to amend plan
provisions at any time.

All qualified employees at least 18 years of age become eligible to participate in the plan on the first date of
the month following the date of employment. Employees voluntarily contribute to the plan. If employees
contribute 2% or more to the plan, the city contributes 10% to the plan. To accommodate both employer and
employee contributions the City utilizes a Section 457(b) deferred compensation plan to receive employee
contributions and a Section 401(a) plan to receive employer contributions.

Employees immediately vest in the clective deferral contributions made to the Plan. For bargaining unit
cmployees, a graded vesting schedule for employer contributions provides for 100% vesting after 10 years
of service. Non-bargaining unit employees are 100% vested after one completed year of service to the City.
The vested portions of the accounts or contributions to the plan are available to the participants immediately
upon termination of service. Normal retirement benefits are available upon attaining age 60. The plan docs
not provide for an early retirement date prior to the normal retirement date of age 60.

The required employer contributions to the Plan for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003, and
2002 were $79,974, §45,362, and $82,841, respectively. Employce contributions to the Plan for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were $81,431, $58,514, and $38,450, respectively.

As a part of the plan, account forfeitures are accumulated to offset the cost of future City contribution
requirements. For the year ended September 30, 2004, accumulated plan forfeitures totaling $54,837 were
used to offset current year funding requirements. At September 30, 2004, cumulative plan forfeitures totaled
55,193, all of which may be used to reduce the City’s portion of its subsequent years’ contribution
requirements.

Police Officers and Firefighters - Defined Benefit Pension Plans:

Plan Description. The City maintains and administers separate single-employer pension plans for all eligible
police officers and firefighters, which assets are included in the Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust
Fund (the "Police Plan") and Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund (the "Fire Plan™). Both Plans issue
publicly available stand-alone financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary
information for the plans. The Police Plan report may be obtained by writing to City of Holly Hill, Florida
Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund, Post Office Box 251485, Holly Hill, FL 32125 or calling (386) 248-
9475. The Fire Plan report may be obtained by writing to City of Holly Hill, Fiorida Firefighters® Retirement
System Pension Trust Fund, 1065 Ridgewood Avenue, Holly Hill, FL 32117-2898 or calling (386) 248-9473.

All certified police officers and firefighters are eligible to participate in the respective systems after
employment. Benefits vest with eligible employees after ten years of participation. The funding methods and
the determination of benefits payable are provided in the various acts of the Florida Legislature, which created
the funds, including subsequent amendments thereto. More information relating to the funding methods,
determination of benefits, and permissible investments for the Police Plan and the Fire Plan can be found in
Chapters 185 and 175, Florida Statutes, respectively. These statues provide, in general, that funds are to be
accumulated from employee contributions, City contributions, State appropriations and income from
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investments from accumulated funds. The act also provides that should the accumulated funds at any time
be insufficient to meet and pay the benefits due, the City shall supplement the funds by an appropriation from
current funds or from any revenues which may be lawfully used for said purposes in an amount sufficient to
make up the deficiency. The investments of the two funds are administered , managed, and operated by their
respective boards of trustees using the services of the City staff, local financial institutions, and third-party
fund custodians.

Full-time, uniformed police officers are eligible to participate in the Police Plan upon employment by the City.
Full-time, uniformed firefighters are eligible to participate in the Fire Plan upon employment with the City.
Employees vest with full benefits after 10 years of service. Normal retirement occurs for police officers at
the eartier of age 55 and 10 years of credited service or 20 years of credited service regardless of age but no
earlier than age 55 for vested terminations. Normal refirement for firefighters occurs at age 50. An
independent actuary appointed by the Board of Trustees actuarially determines benefits to be paid to retirees.

Current membership in the pension plans is composed of the following:

Police Fire
Plan Plan

Participant data as of October 1, 2003, the
date of the most recent actuarial valuation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits .. ...... ... ... ... 12 6
Vested terminated employees ... .. ... .. 0 ]
Active employees:

Fullyvested . ........ ... ... coun 8 0

Nonvested . ........ ... ..., 18 12
Total participants ............ . ... ... 38 19

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Plans. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized in
presenting the pension trust funds combining balance sheet and combining statement of revenue, expenses
and changes in fund balance. Plan receivables are short term and consist of contributicns due from the City,
State and/or from plan members. Plan liabilities would generally include benefits due to plan members and
beneficiaries and acerued investment and administrative expenses and are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the terms of the Plans. The difference between total plan assets and total plan liabilities
at the reporting date are captioned net assets held in trust for pension benefits reserved for employees” pension
benefits and represent the net assets held in trust for pension benefits.

Investments are reported at fair value and are managed by third party money managers. Investiments that do
not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value. Performance reporting, administrative
expenses, and the City’s asset valuation are based on the custodians® determination of value.

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made. The City provides contributions to the Police Plan and
Fire Plan under the authority of Chapters 185 and 175, Florida Statutes, respectively and pursuant to City
ordinances. Employees covered under the plans are required to make contributions of 11.2% [Police Plan]
and 10.0% [Fire Plan] of their compensation. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to fund the Plans based on the funding amounts determined by the Plans’ actuaries.
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The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 27 on pension accounting and reporting. This statement requires
the computation of a net pension obligation (NPO) or asset which would result if the City’s contributions to
the pension funds did not equal the annual pension cost as computed by the plan actuaries. During the current
year, the City evaluated both plans to determine the net pension obligation or assets at the end of 2003.

The City’s annual pension cost and net pension obligations to the Police and Fire Plans were as follows:

Municipai Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund

Actuarial Percentage Net
Determined of ADC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Contribution Contributed  Obligation
09/30/2003 ... ... . ... ... $ 14,537 1000%  § 0
09/30/2002 ... .. . 25,404 100.0% 0

09/30/2001 ... ... ... 0 100.0% 0

The actuarially determined contribution is reduced by funds received from the State of Florida that are
required to be deposited directly into the Plan as stipulated by Ch. 185, F.S. For the past three years the City
has not had to contribute to the Municipal Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund above the amount covered
by the State of Florida Casualty Insurance Premium Tax monies.

Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund

Actuarial Percentage Net
Determined of ADC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Contribution Contributed  Obligation
09/30/2003 ... ... ... ... $ 74,407 100% $ (54,885)
09/30/2002 .. ... ... L. 69,527 100% (55,776).
0973072001 ... Ll 42 883 142% {56,682)

The Fire Plan has been subject to the minimum funding standards since the adoption of the “Florida Protection
of Public Employee Retirement Benefits Act” (part VII, Chapter 112, Florida Statutes) in 1980. Accordingly,
the City has funded the actuarially determined required contributions for all years from October 1, 1987,
through the transition date, October 1, 1997. Thus, the Net Pension Obligation on October 1, 1997 is $-0-.
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The development of the Net Pension Obligation (NPO}) in the Fire Plan through October 1, 2003 is as follows:

09/30/01 09/30/02 09/30/03
Actuarially determined contribution $ 42,883 69,527 74,407
Intereston NPO ............... (2,949) (4,251) (4,183)
Adjustment . ... ... ... ... 3577 5.157 75.298
Annual Pension Cost . .......... 43,511 70,433 75,298
Contributionsmade ............ 60,875 69,527 74,407
Increase in NPO . ... ... ... (17,364) 906 391
NPO - beginning of year . . . ...... (39,318) {56,682) (55,776}
NPO-endofyear.............. § (56.682) {55.776) {54,885)

The above negative pension obligation has been included in the accrual-based government-wide statements
of net assets and activities, as required,

The actuarial valuations for both plans were prepared in accordance with GASB Statements No. 25 and 27.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations for cach plan are as follows:

Police Fire
Plan Plan
Contribution rates as of 09/30/03;
City (employer) .. ... 1.6% 16.5%
City forMembers ...................... 8.0% 0.0%
Plan Members . ... .. .. ... ... ... ... 11.2% 10.0%
Annual pensionncost ...... ... o $14,537 $75,298
Contributions made . ... ... .. ... ... .. ... $14,537 $74,407
Actuarial valuationdates ........ ... ... .., 10/01/02 10/01/02
Actuarial costmethod .. ... . ... L Aggregate Aggregate
Amortizationmethod . ....... ... .. ... .. N/A N/A
Remaining amortization period .............. N/A N/A
Asset valuationmethod . ... ... ... ... 4yr. Smoothed  4yr. Smoothed
Market Market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of retem ... ... oo, 8.0% 7.5%
Projected salary increases * ........ . ... .. 6.0% 5.0%
*Includes inflationat. ...... ... . ... 3.0% 2.5%
Cost of living adjustments . ............... 0.0% 0.0%

N/A - The amortization method and period are not applicable for this plan since the Aggregate
Actuarial Cost Method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities.

Related Party Transactions. The City held no securities which were included in the assets of the Police Pian
or Fire Plan,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Required Supplementary Information. The required supplementary information pursuant to GASB No, 25
is contained in Schedules 1 and 2 presented immediately following these notes to the financial statements.

Noreg 11 - DEFERRED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The City offers its City Manager participation in a Money Purchase Plan and Trust, created in accordance with
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The assets of this plan are administered by the International
City Managers Association Retirement Corporation. Upon separation from service for reasons of death,
disability or attainment of age 59 (normal retirement age) the participant may elect to commence receiving
benefits which equal accurmulated employers' contributions plus earnings thereon. All benefits vest with the
employee at the date of contribution. The City contributes 14.26% of the participant’s salary to the Plan. For
the year ended September 30, 2004, the City’s covered payroll was $87,372 and contributions were $12,459.

The City also offers an alternative Section 457 plan to accommodate supplemental employee elective deferrals
for employees covered in the City’s defined benefit plans. The assets of this plan are also administered by
the International City Managers Association Retirement Corporation. Supplemental employee contributions
to the Plan for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 totaled $32,549.

NOTE 12 - LEGAL MATTERS

The City is engaged in routine litigation incidental to the conduct of their respective business and municipal
affairs. In the opinion of their Counsel, no legal proceedings are pending against them, not covered by
insurance, which would inhibit their ability to perform their operations or materially affect their financial
condition.

NoTE 13 - COMMITMENTS

Amounts received or receivabie from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencics,
principally the federal and state governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected,
may constitute a hiability of the applicable fund(s). The amount, if any, of expenditures from current or prior
years which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employces; and natural disasters, all of which is satisfactorily insured by
general liability insurance. Commercial insurance policies are also obtained for all other risks of loss,
including workers’ compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule 1

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Variance
Actual With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue:
Taxes:
General property taxes:
Current ad valorem taxes ..ooooveeeceeveivenieerenns 1,430,200 1,460,000 1,438,299 (1,701)
Delinguent ad valorem taxes .........o.coevvennn 20,000 20,000 6,825 (13,175)
Local option gas1aX ....cce.eeecreeiiireeineiienieanens 152,000 154,700 160,515 5,815
2nd Local option gas taxX ..o, 115,000 116,300 117,927 1,627
Franchise taxes ...oiveviniviiieieeeeeeeeeeenes 631,800 674,100 640,107 (33,993)
Utility SEIvICE (AXES oo s 1,340,000 1,324,000 1,319,858 (4,142)
Total taXes oo 3,689,000 3,749,100 3,703,531 (45,569)
Licenses and permits:
BUSTIIESS toverireriiiemis oo eeie e e e enens 200,000 175,000 170,434 (4,566)
NONDUSINESS .o 94,700 105,700 107,299 1,599
Total licenses and permits ...................... 294,700 280,700 277,733 (2,967
Intergovernmental Revenue;
Federal Grants:
Department of JUSHCE oo 15,000 28,300 32,338 4,038
Department of Homeland Security............... ¢ 57,400 42,692 (14,708)
State Grants:
Department of Law Enforcement ..o, 0 6,800 6,815 15
State Shared Revenues:
State revenue sharing proceeds ... 310,000 339,700 370,603 30,903
Mobile home HHCenses ..ooovvviiicicei v 19,000 17,000 16,466 (534)
Alcoholic beverage licenses ..., 7,000 7.000 7.681 681
Local government half-cent sales tax .......... 650,000 650,000 652,814 2,814
Motor fuel tax rebate ..., 800 600 597 (3)
Firefighters’ supplemental revenue ............. 600 1,000 2,111 1,111
Other Shared Revenues:
Other local grants........ocooe v 0 24,600 22,287 (1,713)
County shared revenues ..o, 13,000 13,000 14,813 1,813
Total intergovernmental revenue ........... 1,015,400 1,144,800 1,169,217 24,417
Charges for services:
General SOVErNMENT coovvivereoieeeeeeee e, 8,800 10,000 11,198 1,198
Public safety .o 4,000 5,500 5,847 347
Transportation .....ccccceeve v v 43,900 56,900 55,473 (1,427
Culture/Tecreation ..o e, 112,000 80,000 77,385 (2,613)
Total charges for services ........oovmnvivenn 168,700 152,400 149,903 (2,497)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Schedule 1

Variance
Actual With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Fines and forfeitures:
COUNE CASES wovvereerienieveriererie e errmnsnsrasnesennannnes 63,500 46,500 45,419 (1,081)
Local ordinance violations .....cccevveevcveennnn 4,500 2,500 875 (1,625)
Total fines and forfeitures ....o.oocvivernnns 68,000 49,000 46,294 (2,706)
Miscellaneous Revenues:
Inferest CArNINGS v vececrr e 59,000 50,000 38,853 (11,147}
Sale of fixed assets 20,500 32,400 27,510 (4,890}
Contributions and donations ........ccceeevvevieens 0 4,500 7,919 3,419
Miscellaneous reVenies ..o iccncernes 52,000 42,000 30,853 (11,145}
Total miscelianeous revenue ................. 131,500 128,200 105,137 (23,763)
Total TEVENUE ..ot 5,367,300 5,504,900 5,451,815 (53,085)
Expenditures:
General Government:
Legislative:
Personal SEIVICES i sisnsanniine 36,300 36,300 33,004 3,296
Operating expenditures ... 54,600 55,600 54,253 1,347
90,900 61,900 87,257 4,643
Executive:
Personal SEIVICES e 317,600 327,200 315,044 12,156
Operating expendifures ... 45,500 45,500 40,187 5,313
363,100 372,700 355,231 17,469
Financial and Administrative:
Personal SErviCes ..o 496,200 496,200 480,080 16,120
Operating expenditures ... 267,300 304,600 283,419 21,181
763,500 800,800 763,499 37,301
Other General Government:
Personal SEEVICES v e s 21,900 21,900 18,049 3,851
Operating expenditures ..., 131,000 176,500 151,057 25,443
Capital outlay ...ocooieee e 37,800 37,800 36,660 1,140
Grants and aids ..o eeeeereeeere e 77,800 77,800 16,900 60,900
268,500 314,000 222,666 91,334
Total general government ... 1,486,000 1,579,400 1,428,653 150,747
Public Safety:
Law Enforcement:
Personal SBrvices .oovvveeeeicivienieienee e 1,600,500 1,600,500 1,579,186 21,314
Operating expendifures ....ovoiin, 182,500 200,800 177,107 23,063
Capital outlay ..o 58,100 58,100 58,076 24
1,841,100 1,859,400 1,814,969 44,431
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Schedale 1

Variance
Actual With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Fire Protection:
Personal Services e eveeieeeeeeeeeer i $ 962,700 962,700 910,914 51,786
Operating expenditures ......coooeeveviiievivennns 111,560 161,400 135,212 26,188
Capital OUEIZY ...oveeeeiierieer e oo 81,200 81,200 73,196 8,004
1,155,400 1,205,300 1,119,322 85,978
Building Inspection; -
Personal SErvices .o veieiee e 250,600 250,600 232,851 17,749
Operating expenditures .......ooeeevevvirennnnns 112,000 115,000 98.905 16,095
Capital GUIAY ..o 14,100 14,100 14,065 35
376,700 379,700 345,821 33,879
Total public safety ..o 3,373.200 3,444,400 3,280,112 164,288
Transportation:
Road and Street Facilities:
Personal services oo, 365,400 365,400 339,895 25,505
Operating expenditures ... revcsniens 208,200 333,000 298,598 34,402
Capital outlay ........cccoooviiit i, 355,500 355,500 352,711 2,789
Total transportation ... 929,100 1,053,900 991,204 62,656
Culture/Recreation:
Parks:
Personal SErViCES i 333,260 335,200 323,247 11,953
Operating expenditures .........cc.ocoeoeveeiinn, 176,700 176,700 133,952 42,748
Capital outlay ..o 223,800 87,300 30,155 57,145
7357000 599,200 487,354 111,846
Recreation:
Personal services .ooooiveiivvei e 251,500 231,500 242,355 9,145
Operating expenditires ....covvveiccieeeeinn, 145,000 145,000 114,525 30,475
Capital outlay .o e 24,000 8,900 8,875 25
420,500 405,400 365,755 39,645
Total cuiture/recreation ...........oovveeevenn... 1,156,200 1,004,600 853,109 151,491
Debt Service:
Principal retirement:
General government ..o, 126,000 126,000 117,550 8,450
Public safety....coevviicceciee e, 59,300 59,300 59,206 94
185,300 185,300 176,756 8,544
Interest and fiscal charges:
General government .....o....oooveeeoeeeeeaenn 29,700 28,700 29,677 23
Public safety...ccoooiviiceccecree e 5,600 5,600 4,147 1,453
35,300 35,300 33,824 1.476
Total debt service v, 220,600 220,600 210,580 16,020
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule I
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FL.ORIDA

Variance
Actual With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Total expenditures ..o $ 7,165,100 7,302,900 6,763,658 539,242
Excess of revenue over (under)
EXPENdITUIES ovieeceee e e (1,797,800) (1,798,000) (1,311,843) 486,157
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from:
Law Enforcement Trust Fund ... 0 2,500 2,439 61
Community Development Block Grant Fund.. 0 0 13,427 (13,427)
Water and Sewer Fund ... 450,000 450,000 450,000 0
Solid Waste Fund ..o 260,000 260,000 260,000 0
Appropriated fund balance......ooiiiiin, 1,195,100 1,457,300 0 (1,457,300)
Transfers to:
Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund .............. (2,300) (10,400) {9,516) 884
Capital Projects Fund ..o (105,000 (361,400} 0 361,400
Total financing sources {USES) vovvervevenens 1,797,800 1,798,000 716,350 (1,108,382)
Net change in fund balance.......ccocovviees ¢ 0 (595,493) (595,493)
Fund balance, beginning of year ......cccecvvvrevrenne. 2,675,986 2,675,986 2,675,986 0
Fund balance, end of Year o.cvvevviniinnnneninns b 2.675.986 2,075,986 2,080,493 {595,493)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Schedule 2

Variance
Actual With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue:
Taxes:
General property taxes:
Current ad valorem taxes .....o.ovvvveeevereenenenns 134,800 133,600 133,588 (12)
Intergovernmental Revenue: :
Shared revenues from other local units............ 266,800 282,500 282,498 {2)
Miscetlaneous Revenue:
Interest Carnings .oo.ccovevvovvireeccis s e e 3,000 3,000 6,062 3,062
Total revenue...oi e 404,600 419,100 422,148 3,048
Expenditures:
FEconomic Envirenment;
Personal ServiCes .o 174,360 174,300 161,556 12,744
Operating expenditures ..ooevveeeecvveieceeneennss 44,000 44,000 26,776 17,224
Capital outlay oo 186,300 466,800 139314 327,486
Total economic environment .................. 404,600 685,100 327,646 357,454
Excess of revenue over {under)
EXPENdIMUIES «veries i e 0 (266,000) 94,502 (354,406)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated fund balance...........ccocoveveniiiiienn, 0 266,000 0 (266,000}
Net change in fund balance..................... 0 0 94,3502 (620,406)
Fund balance, beginning of year ..o, 266,122 266,122 266,122 0
Fund balance, end of year ..., 266,122 266,122 360,624 (620,406)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule 3
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

STORMWATER DRAINAGE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Variance
Actual With
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue:
Shared revenues from other local units........... $ 0 0 50,000 50,000
Charges for Services:
Physical Environment;
Stormwater management fees ... 521,300 525,000 531,867 6,867
Miscellaneous Revenue:
INTEreSt €AININES 1.vvevvevvverrmrensrinsirieersresesersinssns 17,350 12,000 6,881 (5,119}
Miscellaneous.....vivierininnin s 50 0 0 0
17,400 12,000 6,881 (5,119}
TOLAl FEVENUE, .. iieviereerrevrisrirremrene e erennees 538,700 537,000 588,748 51,748
Expenditures:
Physical Environment:
Personal $ervices oo 146,600 157,500 154,563 2,937
Operating expenditures ... 127,600 112,160 51,427 60,673
Capital outlay ..o 288,000 3,118,000 2,938,613 179,387
Total transportation ... 562,200 3,387,600 3,144,603 242,997
Total revenue over {under)
EXPENAHUICS oot {23,500) (2,850,600) (2,555,855} 294,745
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of tong-term debt. ... 0 3,600,000 2,770,179 (229,821)
Appropriated fund balance................... 204,600 ¢ 0 0
Transfers from (to):
Community Development Block Grant Fund.. 0 227,500 332,342 104,842
Stormwater Drainage Debt Service Fund........ {181,100} (376,900) (384,234) (7,334)
Total other financing sources.......c.coeeee 23,500 2,830,600 2,718,287 (132,313
Net change in fund balance.........ccoeveeee. 0 ] 162,432 162,432
Fund balance, beginning of year ... 632,050 632,050 (632,050 0
Fund balance, end of year ......coeoveniivriccnininiecnes. 632,050 632,050 794,482 162,432




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

September 30, 2004

CiTY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Schedule 4

Unfunded

(Assets in

Actuarial Excess of)

Accrued Unfunded AAlL asa

Actuarial Liability (Assets in Percentage

Actuarial Value of (AAL) Excess of) Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) {(b) {b-a) {a/b) (c) ((b - a)/c)
Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund
10/01/1998 $1,831,190 $1,831,190 $0 100.G0% $326,669 0.00%
10/01/1999 $1,964,236 $1.964,236 30 100.00% $381.325 0.00%
10/01/2000 $2,044,098 $2,044,098 50 100.00% $339,489 0.00%
10/02/2001 $2,089,520 $2,089,520 30 100.00% $402,803 0.00%
10/02/2002 $2,100,744 $2,100,744 50 1030.00% $467.323 0.00%
[0/02/2003 $2,120,170 $2,120,170 $0 100.00% $466,503 (.00%
Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund

10/01/1998 $4,440,281 $4,654,807 $214,526 §5.39% $796,342 26.94%
10/01/1999 $4.911,737 $5,060,316 $148,539 97.06% $870,214 17.07%
10/01/2000 $5,500,526 $6,064,771 $564,245 90.70% $744,912 75.75%
10/02/2001 $5,532,568 $5,532,568 30 100.00% $871,152 0.00%
10/02/2002 $5,430,534 $5,430,534 30 100.00% $744,912 0.00%
10/02/2003 55,267,378 $5.267,378 $0 100.00% $870,214 0.00%

Source: Foster & Foster, Inc., Actuaries
Valuations dated 10/01/2003



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION Schedule 5
SCHEDULES OF CONTRIBUTIONS OF EMPLOYER AND OTHER CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Fiscal Annual

Year Required Empleyer State Total Percentage

Ended Contribution Contributions Contributions Contributions Contributed

Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund
09/30/1998 $87.446 $89.109 $37.878 $126.987 145.22%
09/30/1999 $83,017 : $55.985 $28.077 * $84.,062 101.26%
09/30/2000 $70,054 $41,977 : $28,077 * $70,034 100.00%
09/30/2001 $70.960 560,875 $28,077 * $88.952 125.36%
09/30/2002 $97.604 $69.527 $28.077 * $97.604 100.00%
09/30/2003 $102.484 $74,407 $28,077 * $102,484 100.00%
* "Frozen” per Chapter 173, Florida Statutes, as amended
Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund

09/30/1998 56 §0 $51.839 $51.839 100.00%
09/30/1999 $12.003 $0 $48,760 $48,760 100.00%
09/30/2000 $26,549 $0 543,177 $45.177 100.00%
09/30/2001 $5,051 50 $43,613 $45,613 100.60%
09/30/2002 $71.017 $25,404 $51,038 $76,442 106.00%
09/3G/2003 $75.278 $14,537 560,741 $75.278 100.00%

Source: Foster & Foster, Inc., Actuaries
Valuations dated 10/01/2003
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N ONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for revenues derived firom specific taxes or
other earmarked revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular
purposes.

Law Enforcement Trust Fund - 1o account for the restricted revenues
received from the sale of confiscated property and for the expenditure of
the funds for restricted law enforcement purposes.

Youth Center - to account for the receipt and expenditure of program
Junds authorized by the Youth Center Advisory Board.

Comniunity Development Block Grant - io account for the receipt and
expenditure of program funds from the Community Development Block
Grant program.

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant - (0 account for the receipt and
expenditure of program funds from the Local Law Enforcement Block
Grant program.

Debt Service Fund - is created and used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Fund - is created to account for the financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities by the City of Holly Hill except those
Jinanced by proprietary funds.

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds - Include major tangible
assets that benefit more than a single fiscal period









COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Community Local Law
Law Development Enforcement
Enforcement Youth Block Block
Trust Center Grant Grant
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..o, 26,422 23,172 0 0
Due from other governments ........oocovvvveveencenn 2,260 0 0 0
Total assets i e e 28,682 23,172 0 ¢
Liabilities and Fund Bafances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable . 1,994 0 0 0
Due to other funds....o.ooooev oo 240 0 0 0
Total Habilities .o 2,234 0 0 0

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:
Encumbrances e eeevieeeee e 0 ¢ 0 0
Law enforcement o e snnns 20,448 0 ¢ 0
DeB SCIVICE v erctec s e 0 0 0 ¢
Unreserved o " 23,172 0 0
Total fund Balances i, 26,448 23,172 0 ]
Total liabilities and fund balances .......... 28,682 23,172 0 Q
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Exhibit 1

Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special [ebt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Fund Fund Funds
49,594 265,229 247,339 562,162
2,260 0 53,798 56,058
51,854 265,229 301,137 618.220
1,994 0 47,443 49,437
240 0 0 240
2,234 0 47,443 49,677
0 0 253,694 253,694
26,448 0 0 26,448
o 265,229 0 265,229
23,172 0 0 23,172
49,620 265,229 253,694 568,543
51,854 265,229 301,137 618,220
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HiLL, FLORIDA

Nonmajor Speciai Revenue Funds

Community Local Law
Law Development  Enfoercement
Enforcement Youth Block Block
Trust Center Grant Grant
Revenue:
Intergovernmental ... rveimec o S 1,022 0 433,669 21,064
Fines and forfeitures 9,597 0 0 0
Miscellaneous ..ot 83 5,557 0 50
TOIAl TEVENUE oot rere e sreveereescrrreens 10,702 5,557 433,669 21,114
Expenditures:
Current:
Public ety oo e e 14,307 0 0 30,630
Transportation. ..o 0 0 87,900 0
CuHUre/recreation. v, 0 600 ¢ 0
Capital Qutlay:
Culture/recreation. ..o e O 0 0 0
Debt Service:
Principal retirefenis. .o ivcieeeraeenenes 0 0 0 0
Interest payments.....ccooveeevvnevc e 0 0 0 0
Total expenditires .o e 14,307 600 87,900 30,030
Excess of revenue over (under)
EXPERATIUIES ©vireeiieericiree e (3,603) 4,957 345,769 (9,516}
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
THEANSTEES J1 oo e e e 0 0 0 9,516
Transfers (OUt)....iiiii i, (2,439) 0 (345,769} 0
Total other financing sources (uses)............. (2,439} 0 (345,769) 9,516
Net changes in fund balances........c..c.coeee {6,044) 4,957 0 0
Fund balances, beginning of year ........cccvieen 32,492 18,215 0 ¢
Fund balances, end of year ....cccccocvveeeeeicencee e $ 26,448 23,172 0 0
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Exhibit 2

Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Total
Special Debt Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Service Projects Governmental
Funds Fund Fund Funds

455,755 0 53,798 509,553

9,597 0 0 9,597

5,690 4,002 4,046 13,738

471,042 4,002 57,844 532,888

44,937 0 4 44,937

87,900 0 0 87,900

600 0 0 600

0 0 148,142 148,142

0 286,843 0 286,843

0 90,030 0 90,030

133,437 376,873 148,142 638,452
337,605 {372,871) (90,298) (125,564)

9,516 384,234 0 393,750
(348.208) o 0 (348,208)

{338,692) 384,234 0 45,542
(1,087) 11,363 (90,298) (80,022)

50,707 233,866 343,992 648,565

49,620 265,229 253.694 568,543

68



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NONMAJOR LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhkibit 3

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Over
Original Final Amounts {Under)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue:
Federal Grants:
Department of JUStice. ..ot 0 0 1,022 1,022
Fines and Forfeitures:
Confiscated propery o cencrenieennes it 0 9,597 9,597
Miscellaneous:
INIEEst CArMINZS. cvvririrriaierir e reerar e 0 0 83 83
Total FEVENUE oo 0 0 10,702 10,702
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety:
Operating expendifures...........cvcevnivnnns 0 15,000 14,307 693
Capital QULIaY. ..o 0 2,500 t] 2.500
Total expenditures.....cocvevveeeecverceceienns it 17.500 14,307 3,193
Excess of revenue over (under)
expenditires e 0 (17,500) (3,605) 7,509
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Appropriated fund balance.......oirinnee 0 20,000 0 {20,000}
Transfer (to) from other funds:
General Fund........oooooviieice v (2,500) (2,439)
Total financing sources (USEs) vovvveveverenne G 17,500 (2,439} (20,000)
Net change in fund balance..........c.......... 0 0 {6,044) (12,491)
Fund balances, beginning of year ....cc.oovviveevennn 32,492 32,492 32,492 0
Fund balances, end of year .........ccoovcvvvveveeernnnne. 32,492 49,992 26,448 (12,491)
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEPULE
NONMAJOR YOUTH CENTER FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit 4

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Over
Original Final Amounts (Under)
Revenue:
Misceilaneous:
Miscellaneous contributionS....vveceeeeeveeneen.. 0 4,800 5,357 757
Total reVenue ..o, 0 4,800 5,557 757
Expendifures:
Current;
Culture/recreation:
Operating expenditures.............cc.ccoceeerinon, 0 4,800 600 4,200
Net change in fund balance..........oooeee.... 0 0 4,957 4,957
Fund balances, beginning of year ......................... 18,215 18,215 18,215 ¢
Fund balances, end of year ..., 18,215 18,215 23,172 4,957
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Exhibit §
NONMAJOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Over
Original Final Amounts (Under)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue:
Federal Grants:
Department of Housing and Urban
Development . .. oo $ 105,600 238,700 433,669 194,969
Expenditures:
Current:
Transportation:
Capital oUlAY..cvr e 105,600 91,600 87,900 3,700
Excess of revenue over {under)
EXPENAITUIES .ooiieeitrr e veevas s 0 147,100 345,769 198,669
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer {to) from other funds:
General Fund....ooceceee 0 (14,000) (13,427) 573
Stormwater Drainage Fund.......cccevvieivienens 0 (133,100) (332,342} (199,242)
Total financing sources (Uses) ...cooeveeee. ¢ (147,100) (345,769) (198,669)
Net change in fund balance..........coco.e. 0 0 0 0
Fund balances, beginning of year ... 0 0 0 0
Fund batances, end of year ....ccoovveviviivirniee i, $ 0 0 0 0
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NONMAJOR LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibit ¢

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Over
Original Final Amounts {Under)
Revenue:
Intergovernmental Revenue;
Federal Grants;
Department of JUstic........cooovveeeeeivreeernrns $ 21,100 21,100 21,064 {36}
Miscellaneous:
Interest eaArnINES. i B 0 100 50 (50)
Total revVenUe ..o 21,100 21,200 21,114 (86)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety:
Operating expenditures...............oooovevne, 300 12,600 11,711 889
Capital cutlay......ooiviieiccv i 22,900 19,000 18,919 81
Total expenditures.....ooveeecev e, 23,400 31,600 30,630 970
Excess of revenue over (under)
eXPeRdItUres .oooein i (2,300) (10,400) (9.516) 884
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from General Fund..........ccoovvvvivennn. 2,300 10,400 9,516 (884
Net change in fund balance.................... 0 0 0 0
Fund balances, beginning of year ..., 0 0 0 0
FFund balances, end of year ..o, b G 0 0 o
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE Exhibit 7
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HiLL, FLORIDA

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Over
Original Final Amounts {Under)
Revenue:
Miscellaneous:
INterest CarNings...cvcevierieieerenrenrenrirrensemreenrenss ;) 0 0 4,002 4,002
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal retirement.......ccoooeeiriinsii e, 0 286,843 (286,843)
INferest Payments.........c.ocoeeoreicererrererreccrceas 0 90,030 (90,030)
Total expenditures....cuee e vvvvnieeriennnens ¢ 0 376,873 (376,873)
Excess of revenue over (under)
eXPENAIUTES oo e 0 0 (372,871) (372,871)
Other Financing Sources (Uses}:
Transfer from Stormwater Drainage Fund ......... 0 t] 384,234 384,234
Net change in fund balance.......cceenin 0 0 11,363 11,363
Fund balances, beginning of year .........cocooeveeenene 233,866 253,866 253,866 0
Fund balances, end of year ......ccocv i vvvvnnninne $ 253,866 253,866 265,229 11,363




BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HiLL, FLORIDA

Exhibit §

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Over
Original Final Amounts {Under)
Revenue:
Infergovernmental:
State grant;
Florida Department of Environmental
PrOtECtION. et 50,000 0 53,798 53,798
Miscellaneous:
Interest @arnings. ... veiveeceeeeeie e 0 3,000 4,046 1,046
Total TEVENUE ..o 50,000 3,000 57,844 54,844
Expenditures:
Capital Cutlay:
Transportation. ..., 100,000 0 0 ¢
Culture/rectrealion. ..o ce s, 55,000 659,700 148,142 511,558
Total expenditures. i, 155,000 659,700 148,142 511,558
Excess of revenue over (under)
EXPEIAIHIES 1ot (105,000) (6356,700) (90,298} 566,402
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Transfer from General Fund ............cocoeevvennn, 105,000 361,400 G (361,400)
Appropriated fund balance.........c..c.cooooooone, ¢ 295,300 0 (295,300)
Total other financing sources (uses)........ 105,000 636,700 0 (656,700)
Net change in fund balance..................... 0 0 {90,298) (90,298)
Fund balances, beginning of vear c..cooeveeivnnns 343,992 343,992 343,992 0
Fund balances, end of year ........cooeviviiiivienn, 343992 343.992 253,694 (90,298}
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Exhibit 9
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE

September 30, 2004 and 2003

CiTY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

2004 2003
Governmental Funds Capital Assets:
LA ottt $ 1,950,539 1,950,539
Buildings 4,257.028 4,042,446
Improvements other than Buildings .coocovoovivieieecece e e 2,065,279 2,026,363
Machinery and eqUIPIMERT .......o.ooviviveeieccerve ettt ees et et eee e enees e 3,027,050 2,934,087
INFTASEIUCTUIE oottt ettt e bt e ee e eeeanns s 7,731,473 7,351,595
Construction WOrk il PIOZIESS c...ociiviveeieeesceceticeeee oo eceese e e st reneneenne 4,777,357 1,992,015
Total governmental funds capital 855618 w.iiviiieier e ereeee e g . 23,808,726 20,267,047
Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source:
GENETAl FUNG .o et rs st en e e et es e s st e b 11,729,945 11,003,607
Special REVENUE FUNS 1ivvveriet i es e 7,809,644 5,061,785
Capilal Projects FUNU et ee e eeeea oo ee oo 4,269,137 4,231,655
Total investments in governmental funds capital a55ets .o..ooo.ovvviivss oo, 5 23,808,726 20,297.047
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Improvements
Other
Than
Function Land Buildings Buildings
General GOVEIMITIENT v is e st sbe s aaas s sersneees 217,023 928,946 129,286
Public SAfety ... 50,000 435,320 44,749
PUBLiC WOTKS 1o 13,536 83,784 353,111
Physical ENvIronment ......c.covveeieieieeiescs e 555,167 50,135 37,009
Economic ENVIIONMERT .. seesessesssnsenses s e 0 0 13,820
Culture/RECTEATION .voeve et et saee e 1,114,813 2,758,843 1,487,304
Total governmental funds capital assets.........ocoeee, 1,950,539 4257028 2,065,279
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Exhibit 10

Machinery Construction
and Work in
Equipment Infrastructure Progress Total
568,513 0 0 1,843,768
1,308,530 0 0 1,838,599
467,889 4,373,994 0 5,292,314
329,734 3,191,891 4,733,702 8,897,638
0 0 0 13,820
352,384 165,588 43,635 5,922,587
3,027,050 7,731,473 4,777,357 23,808,726
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Exhibit 11
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Governmental Governmental
Funds Capital Funds Capital
Assels Assels
Function 10/01/2003 Additiens Deletions 09/30/2004

General GOVEIMMENT ...vcivvie e sn v $ 1,770,267 73,501 ¢ 1,843,768
Public Safety ..o 1,800,376 150,190 111,967 1,838,599
Public Works ..o.oooeieee e 4,975,721 386,371 69,778 5,292,314
Physical Environment .....c.ococcoevvevienisieniesesesenns 6,060,996 2,839,154 2,512 8,897,638
Economic Environment ..........cocoeciieviveeenieeseennnn. 13,820 G 0 13,820
Culture/Recreation ..o 5,675,867 273,572 26,852 5,822,587
Total governmental funds capital assets.. $ 20,297,047 3,722,788 211,109 23,808,726

78



COMBINING STATEMENTS OF PLAN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Exhibif 12

Police Municipal
Officers' Firefighters'
Retirement Pension Total-
Trust Trust Fiduciary
Fund Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... e G 751 751
Investments:
Money market funds ... 227,731 37,281 285,012
LS T CASUTIES o vevssreiir sttt ettt e e vre e s e senteasanes 248,881 191,425 440,306
LS. BEENCIRS 1vvivievisiint e ce ettt tes ettt eeesasesseeeseeeins 371,532 509,563 881,095
U.S. corporate debt obligations .o 1,186,613 205,760 1,392,373
ULS. COTPOIALE EGUILIES ...oes vt 2,739,835 1,106,242 3,846,077
Accrued Interest reCeivable ..o s e 32,968 8,836 41,804
Due from Brokers ..o e s 6,405 13,831 20,236
Due from City of Holly Hill, Florida ........coovvoviereeeeeereee e, ¢ 2,178 2,178
Due from State of FIOrida ...ooovevieiie oo, 0 11,602 11,602
TOIRL ASSCIS 11vivvmrveririeietate e eee et eeeeea e e s ar e e s ease 4.813,965 2,107,469 6,621,434
Liabilities;
ACCOUNTS PAYADIEC Lo e Q0 7.920 7,920n
Net Assets:
Net assets reserved for employees' pension benefits ..ooiieveeiene 4,813,965 2,099,549 6,913,514
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS Exhibit 13
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Police Municipal
Officers’ Firefighters’
Retirement Pension Total-
Trust Trust Fiduciary
Fund Fund Funds
Additions:
Contributions from:
EPIOYET oo 3 107,162 96,928 204,090
B 1 £ 71,625 41,710 113,335
PIAN TEIMDBEIS .oeiiiriiiirnniriiesircnse e rerssressissesiesreresresnsrssrsresees 112,850 57,044 169,934
Total contribULIONS. ..ot et eraes 201,677 195,682 487,359
Investment income:
Net realized and unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) in fair value of investments ........cococooicininnn 296,740 59,405 356,145
Interest and dividend earnings .o vevvvviceeien e 126,459 57,530 183,989
423,199 116,935 540,134
Less: investment management Tees .o (46,793) (24,796) {71,389)
Total investnent iNCOME ..oo.vivieee e erer e erere e 376,406 62,139 468,545
Total AdGHIONS (vt e e e 668,083 287,821 935,904
Deductions:
Benefit PRYMENTS oottt 250,908 138,210 429,118
Refunds/Withdrawals .o 102,317 31,010 133,327
AdminiStrative EXPEIISES wivieieviiierar et err et 18,307 18,418 37,225
Total dedUctionS...ooci o 412,032 187,638 599,670
INEL THETEASE 1evveiivriistiisiistssoiats s b eiabbeas s s b bs s s ks ste s b b s s betmra e ene 256,051 100,183 356,234
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:
Beginning 0f YEAT ..ot e 4,557,914 1,999,366 6,557,280
End of YEAD .ot $ 4,813,965 2,099,549 6,913,514
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STATISTICAL SECTION

Statistical tables differ from financial statements because they usually
cover more than one fiscal year and mqy present non-accounting data.
These tables reflect social and economic data, financial trends and the
Jiscal capacity of the City of Holly Hill, Florida.






GENERAL FUND REVENUES - BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
{(Amounts in §)

Tabie 1

Licenses Charges Fines

Fiscal and Intergovern- for and

Year Total Taxes Permits mental Services (1) Forfeits Miscellanecus
1995 5,161,162 2,825,642 188,062 1,147,940 854,831 46,859 97,828
1996 5,100,361 2,903,615 215,032 1,145,089 568,051 49,605 218,969
1997 4,949,140 2,859,618 219,428 1,060,025 595,622 57,484 156,963
1998 4,633,584 3,159,746 197,426 921,033 113,272 81,317 160,790
1999 4,934,157 3,202,707 245,185 1,135,902 116,708 77,388 156,067
2000 5,042,210 3,279,961 179,580 1,170,485 137,894 73.361 200,929
2001 5,511,489 4,032,557 241,509 1,115,166 140,734 96,481 285,042
2002 5,259,121 3,597,639 247,330 1,071,285 133,964 77.199 131,704
2003 5,318,086 3,643,084 264,819 1,071,666 139,344 46,180 152,393
2004 5,451,815 3,703,531 277,733 1,169,217 149,903 46,294 105,137

(1} Includes sanitation revenues through 1997,
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GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES - BY FUNCTION Table 2
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HiLL, FLORIDA

(Amounts in §)

Fiscal General Public Culture/ Debt

Year Total Governiment Safety Transportation Recreation Service
1995 5,477,498 1,256,993 2,459,806 960,144 800,555 0
1996 4,890,722 1,134,574 2,352,963 517,567 885,618 0
1997 4,758,054 1,187,115 2,350,099 642,129 578,711 0
1998 5,328,393 1,127,297 2,401,183 583,501 540,508 669,904
1999 4,801,917 1,176,422 2,279.242 533,042 631,882 227,329
2000 4,986,324 1,026,223 2,443,962 584,862 701,394 229,883
2001 5,733,307 1,327,157 2,726,312 690,707 725,538 263,593
2002 6,155,134 1,644,990 2,633,784 835,439 772,047 268,894
2003 6,238,718 1,225,562 2,675,450 1,020,172 801,294 216,240
2004 6,763,658 1,428,653 3,280,112 991,204 833,109 216,580
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ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY: Table 3
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (1)

ILAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

(% in thousands}

Percent Outstanding Percent

Net Estimated Total Current of Delinquent of
Fiscal Assessed Actual Tax Tax Levy Taxes Levy
Year Value (1) Value (2) Levy Collections Collected Receivable  Qutstanding
1995 364,891 384,096 95% 1,444 1,383 95.8% 66 4.6%
1996 368,068 383,404 96% 1,438 1,343 3.4% 82 5.7%
1997 374,322 381,961 98% 1,474 1,378 93.5% 84 5.7%
1998 379,373 387,115 98% 1,505 1,405 93.4% 85 5.6%
1699 398,980 403,010 99% 1,498 1,419 94.7% 653 4.3%
2000 416,963 416,963 100% 1,517 1,430 94.3% 66 4.4%
2001 456,695 456,695 100% 1,675 1,618 56.6% 30 1.8%
2002 473,096 477,875 09% 1,631 1,568 96.1% 44 2.7%
2003 504,672 509,770 99% 1,615 1,550 96.0% 49 3.0%
2004 518,946 563,120 (3) 92% 1,653 1,607 97.2% 43 2.6%

(1) Obtained from the County of Volusia, Florida, Finance Department.
{2) Computed based on level of assessment percentage obtained from Florida Department of Revenue,

(3)  Just value from Form DR-403AM




PROPERTY TAX RATES AND TAX LEVIES (1) Table 4
DIRECT AND ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Volusia Southeast Ponce St. Johns Florida Endangered

County Volusia Iniet and Water Inland and
Fiscal Holly School Volusia  Mosquito Port Halifax Management Navigation Recreation
Year Hill District County Control  Authority  Hospital District District Lands

TAX RATES
(per 81,000 of assessed value)

1993 5.46950 10.27700  5.53200 0.28700 0.09400 2.26400 0.48200 0.04%00 0.18460
1996 5.55375 10.88700  3.98900 0.26200 0.09400 225500 0.48200 0.04600 G.18300
1997 5.53591 10.82100  6.03600 0.23800 0.09300 2.23100 0.48200 0.03800 (.18100
1998 551831 10.48700  6.20100 0.23800 0.09000 2.18900 0.48200 0.05000 6.17700
1999 525000  10.37600  6.20400 0.23800 £.09000 2.15200 0.48200 0.04800 0.17400
2000 5.09607 9.91700 6.37300 0.238G0 0.09000 215174 0.48200 0.04400 0.16900
2001 3.09007 9.15800 6.36700 0.2380¢ 0.4%000 2.50000 0.47200 0.04100 0.16300
2002 4,75008 901308 6.60400 0.23800 0.0%000 2.50000 0.46200 $.03850 0.11040
2003 4.50000 8.89900 6.60400 (.23800 0.09000 2.38000 0.46200 0.03850 0.00000
2004 4.08002 8.51700 6.20400 (.23800 0.09400 3.00000 0.46200 0.03830 0.05000

TAX LEVIES
(5 in thousands)

1995 o444 2,714 1,461 76 25 398 127 13 49
1996 5 1,466 2,875 1,581 69 25 595 127 1] 48
1697 § 1434 2,803 1,563 62 24 578 125 10 47
1998 § 1,493 2,841 1,680 64 24 393 130 14 48
1999 1,491 2,946 1,762 68 26 611 137 13 49
2000 $ 1514 2,724 1,894 71 27 744 140 12 48
2001 $ 1672 3,008 2,091 78 30 821 135 13 54
20062 5 Ls60 2,961 2,169 78 30 821 151 12 36
2003 ¥ 1541 3,047 2,261 81 31 813 158 13 0
2004 $ 1,592 3,323 2,421 93 35 1,170 {80 15 0

(1) Obtained from the County of Volusia, Florida, Finance Departiment.
(2)  Includes Tax Roli data from the immediately preceding fiscal year (fiscal vear collections include levy from the prior year).
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY Table 5
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2002

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Payment Coupon
Date Principal Rate Interest Total

10/01/2004 3 505,000 2.000% 3 283,791 $ 788,791
04/01/2005 278,741 278,741
13/01/2003 515,000 2.500% 278,741 793,741
04/01/2006 272,303 272,303
10/01/2006 330,000 3.000% 272,303 802,303
04/01/2007 264,353 264,353
10/01/2007 350,000 3.100% 264,353 814,353
04/01/2008 ' ‘ 255,828 255,828
16/01/2G08 565,000 3.500% 255,828 820,828
G4/G1/2009 245,941 245,941
[0/01/2009 585,000 3.600% 245,941 830,941
04/01/2010 235,411 235,411
10/01/2010 603,000 3.800% 235411 840,411
04/01/2011 223,916 223,916
10/01/2011 625,000 3.875% 223,916 848,916
04/G1/2012 211,806 211,806
10/01/2012 655,000 4.000% 211,806 866,806
04/01/2013 198,706 198,706
10/01/2013 680,000 4.100% 198,700 878,706
04/01/2014 184,766 184,766
10/01/2014 710,000 5.000% 184,766 894,766
04/01/2015 167,016 167,016
10/01/2015 745,000 5.000% 167,016 912,016
04/01/2016 148,391 148,391
10/01/2016 780,000 4.400% 148,391 928,391
04/01/2017 131,231 131,231
10/01/2017 810,000 4.375% 131,231 941,231
04/01/2018 113,006 : 113,006
10/01/2018 850,000 4.625% 113,006 963,606
04/01/2019 93,350 93,350
10/01/2G19 890,000 4.750% 93,350 983,350
04/01/2020 72,213 72,213
10/01/2020 930,000 4,750% 72,213 1,002,213
04/01/2021 50,125 50,125
10/01/2021 980,000 5.000% 50,125 1,030,125
04/61/2022 25,625 25,625
10/01/2022 1,025,000 5.000% 25,625 1,050,625

$_ 13,535,000 $ 6,629,247 b3 20,164,247




COMPUTATION OF OVERLAPPING DEBT Table 6
END OF FISCAL YEAR
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
($ in thousands)
Net Percent City of
General Appiicable Holly
Ohbligation to the Hill
Debt Governmental Share
Name of Governmental Unit Outstanding Unit of Debt
Volusia County School District $18,052 2.59% 5408

Source: Confirmed by individual taxing district
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SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Table 7

Type of Coverage Annuaj
Name of Company and Policy Period Details of Liability Premium
Pelicy Number From - To Coverage Limits (Gross)
Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (PGIT)
Palicy #PK FL1 (6642004 02-01
General Liability 10/01/03 - 16/01/04 General Liability 51,000,000 Per Occurrence $90,274
EMT / Paramedic Deductible $10,000 $2,060,000 General Aggregate Limit
Law Enforcement Law Enforcement Liabitity £1,000,000 Per Occurrence
Deductibie $15,000 $1,000,000 Aggregate Limit
Public Officials Liability Wrongful Acts/Professional Liab. $1,000,000 each loss and in aggregate
Deductible $25,000
Auto Coverage [0/01/G3 - 10/01/04 Aulomobile Liability $1.000,000 Liability
$1,660 deductible $10.000 Personal Injury Protection $46,922
$5.000 Medical Payments
Uninsured Motorists Rejected
Property, 10/01/03 - 10/03/64 $5,000 deductible $25,414,345 Llanket for building and  $96.730
Boiler & Machinery $5,000 deductible per conlents - Inciudes mechanical
occurrence for breakdowns breakdowns
$20,000 deductible per
ocecurrence for {lood
inland Marine 10/01/03 - 10/01/04  Off-road equipment / mobile $821,523 listed property $4.358
Contractor's equipment equipment / emergency service
portable equipment / rented /
borrowed / leased equipment
$3.000 deductible
Fine arts / valuable papers $200.000 listed property
$5,000 deductible
Computer equipment & media  $450,000 listed properly
$3.000 deductible
Crime/Employee 10/01/03 - 10/01/04 Honesty Blanket Bond $100,000 per loss 5867
Dishonesty Thefi, Disappearance &
Destruction $10.000 Inside & Outside Premises
Forgery or Alleration $50,000
Computer Fraud $100,000
$1,000 deductible
Hunt Insurance Group 04/15/03 - 04/15/07 Accidental death in line of duty  $259,000 cach incident $5,063
Policy # SRG8045349A Plus intentional death and
Palice & Firefighters dismemberment $259,000 each incident
Accidental Death & Total principal sum $259,000 in aggregate
Dismemberment
Preferred Governmental 10701703 - 10/01/04 Statutory Statutory, employers' Hability $202,747
Insurance Trust (PGITY $1,0G0,660
Policy #001006006005103
Workers' Compensation
Commerce & Industry 06/25/04 - 06/25/05 Fue! Storage Tank $1,000,000 Each Incident $872
Petroleum Liabitity Insurance $10,000 deductible $1,000,000 Each Aggregate
Policy #FPL 7510482
Environmental Protection
Holly Hill Police Athletic League $1,000,0600 Per Occurrence $2,387

McKinley Financial Services, 01/01/04 - 01/01/05

PAL Program Accident &
Liability Insurance

$2,500 Accidental death
and dismemberment benefit
$100 deductible
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REVENUE BOND COYERAGE
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM FUND
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
(§ in thousands)

Table 8

Debt
Gross Operating Service
Fiscal Revenue Expenses Net Debt Service Requirements Coverage
Year {1) {4) Revenues Principal Interest Total {Times)
1995 3,088 1,469 1,619 240 885 1125 () 1.44
1996 3,216 1,418 1,798 245 876 1,121 (2) 1.60
1997 3,461 1,363 2,008 253 865 1,120 (2) 1.87
1998 3,553 £,350 2,203 270 853 1,123 (2) 1.96
1999 3,712 1,513 2,199 280 841 1,121 (2} £.96
2000 4,039 1,448 2,591 295 827 1,122 (2) 2.31
2001 4,130 1,506 2,624 310 812 1,122 (2) 2.34
2002 4,492 1,677 2,815 330 551 881 (2)(5) 3.20
2003 4,245 1,778 2,467 0 578 578 (3) 4.27
2004 4,263 1,874 2,389 505 568 1,073 (3) 2.23
(1) Included in gross revenue for debt service coverage are water and sewer utility fees, connection charges and
interest earnings from the Water and Sewer Utility.
(2) Debt service expenditures for Series 1992 Bonds.
(3) Debt service expenditures for Serics 2002 Bonds (first year principal amortization in 2004).
(4)  Operating expenses for debt service coverage exciude depreciation, amortization, and City

(5)

administrative charges.

Debt service expenditures for fiscal year 2002 included prinicpal and interest payments of $736,632 on the
Series 1992 Bonds and $144,370 of accrued interest on the Series 2002 Bonds.
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DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY EILL, FLORIDA

Tahle 9

School Unemployment

Fiscal Population Enrollment Rate
Year (1 (2) (3)

1995 (3) 11,539 1,894 (6) 4.9%
1996 (5 11,370 1,887 (6) 4.2%
1997 {5) 11,310 1,872 (6) 4.0%
1998 (5) 11,325 2,066 (G} 3.4%
1999 (5) 11,383 1,888 (6) 3.0%
2000 {4) 12,119 1,813 (6) 3.0%
2001 (5 12,18G 1,992 (6) 4.0%
2002 (5) 12,503 1,689 (6} 5.3%
2003 {5) 12,504 1,681 (6) 5.3%
2004 (3) 12,612 1,574 (&) 5.0%

(1) County of Volusia, Florida, Planning Department
(2} Volusia County School District

(3) Fiorida Department of Labor

(4) U.S. Bureau of Census

(5) Bureau of Economic and Business Research

(6) Volusia County unemployment rate
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PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
(AN amounts in thousands)

Table 10

Commercial . Residential (2) Real [(’iz)perty

Fiscal Construction Construction Bank Taxable Values

Year Units Value Units Value Deposits Commercial Residential
1695 10 51,312 61 $692 $124,705 $2,572,444 $8,065,756
1996 16 $1,735 55 $1,582 $118,817 $2,581,370 $8,279,475
1997 16 $3.777 4] 739 $117,928 $2,591,135 $8,641,481
1998 40 34,657 84 $1,322 $125,678 $2,695,780 $9.038.351
1999 50 $2,997 96 $1,031 $115,258 $2,815,170 $9.417,447
2000 58 34,137 86 $1,119 $116,162 $2,950,481 $9,908,884
2001 69 $5,133 107 $9.025 $116,752 $3,231,614 $10,716,106
2002 87 $5,563 102 $1,779 $115,179 $3,839,917 $12,391,231
2603 39 $2,261 124 $4,280 $137,209 54,308,395 $14,129,561
2004 59 52,261 124 $4,280 $137,269 $4,308,395 514,129,561

(1) City of Holly Hill, Building and Inspection Department

(2} Florida Bankers Association

(3) County of Volusia, Property Appraiser (represents county-wide values)
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SALARIES AND SURETY BONDS OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Table 11

Amount
Years of
Annual of Surety
Title of City Official Salary Service Bond
Mayor $12,000 10 years, 9 months $100,000 blanket
amount on all
City Commissioners (4) $8.000 2 years, 2 months to -

15 years, 8 months

City Attorney (retainer) $7,500 Over 28 years

City Manager $76,482 5 years, 2 months
City Clerk $44,881 3 years, 3 months
Finance Director $67.223 13 years, 7 months
Human Resources Director §51.461 7 years, 5 months
Director of Emergency Services $73,459 3 yeasrs, 5 months
Public Services Director $73,459 Q years, 9 months
Building Official 557,485 Over 24 years
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR TAXPAYERS Table 12
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY RILL, FLORIDA

Percent
of
Assessed Assessed
Rank Taxpayer Name Type of Business Values Value
1. Holly Hill R H.F. Housing, Inc. Bishops Glen Retirement Center $11.673 2.07%
2. Charleston Place LTD Aprtment Complex 36,885 1.22%
3. Sun Communities, operating
Holly Forest Mobile Home Park  Mobile Home Park $6,878 1.22%
4.  Florida Power & Light Electric power utility 36,867 1.22%
5. Publix Super Markets, inc. Grocery - Supermarket $3,556 0.98%
6. Highlander Corp R.W. Contractors, Inc. $5,177 0.92%
7. HK New Plan Exc Prop % Property Tax Dept 124 $4,878 0.86%
&  Riverwalk Plaza LTD Shopping Plaza 54,763 0.84%
9. KMC Telecom Leasing 11, Inc. Communications Utility $4,496 0.80%
10, BeliSouth Telecommunications, Inc.  Communications utility $4,367 077%
Totals $61,540 10.90%

Source: Volusia County Property Appraiser
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MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICAL DATA Table 13
September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Date of Incorporation: July 1, 1901 Recreation;
Parks (total 81.5 acres): 10
Date First Charter Adopted: 1901 Dog Park Facility 2.7 acres 1
Playgrounds 4
Date Present Charter Adopted: 1941 Recreation buildings 5
Tennis courts 2
Form of Government: Commission/Manager Racquetbali courts 2
Shuffleboard courts 9
Population: 12,612 Baseball/softball fields 5
Community centers 2
Area - Square Miles: 5.0 Public fishing piers 3
Boat ramp 1
Miles of Streets and Sidewalks: Wooden pier overlook 3
Paved Streets 61.0 miles Municipal gymnasium i
Unpaved Streets 0.5 miles Concrete bike paths (miles) 1.5
Sidewalks 33.0 miles Swimming pools 1
Multi-purpose field 1
Miles of Storm Sewers:
Storm sewers 42.0 miles Education: Volusia County School District
Sanitary sewers 75.0 miles Elementary schools 1
Secondary schools i
Fire Protection: Students:
Number of stations: 1 Kindergarten to grade 5 644
Number of Firefighters 12 Grades 6to 8 ~ 930
Number of fire hydrants 298 Total
Police Protection: Education personnel:
Number of stations: ] Instructional 127
Number of Police officers 26 Noninstructional 81
Number of Reserve officers 6 Administrative 7
Animal Control officers ]

Street Lights:

Muncipal Employees: High pressure Sodium Vapor:
Civil service 116G 6,300 lumen 673
Exempt [ 6,500 lumen 86
16,000 Jumen 35
Water Treatment Plant: 22,000 lumen 139
Design capacity 2.3 MGD 50,000 lumen 2
Current production rate 1.262 MGD White Way underground 1,000 lumen 6
Users 5,955

Water Pollution Control Plant:

Design capacity 2.4 MGD
Current production rate 1.542 MGD
Users 4,967
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BRENT MILLIKAN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor, City Commission
and City Manager
City of Holly Hill, Florida

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated April 12,2005. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States.

Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Holly Hill, Florida’s financial statements

are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government

Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Holly Hill, Florida’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the
financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission and management, the
Auditor General of the State of Florida, and federal and state awarding agencies, and is not intended to be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Bred Mlld $ o, O

April 12, 2005
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BRENT MILLIKAN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE PROJECT

The Honorable Mayor, City Commission
and City Manager
City of Holly Hill, Florida

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of City of Holly Hill, Florida with the types of compliance requirements

described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2004. The City of
Holly Hill, Florida’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of City
of Holly Hill, Florida’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Holly Hill,
Florida’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing
standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An auditincludes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Holly Hill, Florida’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of City of Holly Hill, Florida’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, City of Holly Hill, Florida complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2004.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of City of Holly Hill, Florida is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Holly Hill, Florida’s
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular

A-133.
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The Honorable Mayer, City Commission
and City Manager

City of Holly Hill, Florida

Page 2 of 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program or state project being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted
no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated April 12, 2005, Our audit was performed for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Holly Hill, Florida.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whele.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission and management, the
Auditor General of the State of Florida, and federal and state awarding agencies, and is not intended to be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Bret M lhb d Co., C

April 12,2005
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Federal Agency

Pass-through Entity CFDA Contract
Federal Program No. Grant No. Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Indirect Programs:
Passed through County of Volusia, Florida
Subrecipient CDBG-Sidewalk improvements.............. 14.218 N/A 3 93,716
Subrecipient CDBG-Drainage/street improvements...... 14.218 N/A 238,626
Subrecipient CDBG-Sica Hall renovations...............eo... 14218 N/A 101,327
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 433,668
U.S. Department of Justice
Direct Programs:
Local f.aw Enforcement Block Grant ..............c.ccoceevvnnn, 16.592 2003-LB-BX-2462 21,064
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Grant Program ................ 16.667 N/A 1,022
COPS GIant oo e s s 16.710 1997-UMWXO0166 4,051
COPS More 2002 ...t 16.710 2002-CMWX0190 13,287
Indirect Programs:
Passed through Florida Departinent of Law Enforcement
Byrne Formula Grant Program........o.occoevviviiinienens [6.579 04-CJ-J3-06-74-02-012 15,060
Total U.S. Departiment of JUstice..o..ooeieeeieiecceeee 54424
U.S. Departient of Environmental Protection
Indirect Programs:
Passed through Florida Department of
Environmental Protection
State Revolving Loan Fund ..o 66.458 SWi2070906P 2,770,179
Total U.S. Department of Environmental Protection <. .. 2,776,179
1J.S. Department of Homeland Security:
Federal Emergency Management Administration:
Indirect Programs:
Passed through Florida Department of
Community Affairs
Emergency Preparedness and Response..................... 83.554 EMW-2003-FG-G7929 42,692
Community Emergency Response Team .......covcennnn. 83.565 04C1-1L-06-74-02-207 6,815
Public AssiStance GIamts.... .o iivcvieeervrnssresinsans 97.036 127-31350-00 B 1,421,530
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security oo 1,471,037
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards .....ooocoeveeieveecrreninnnne. $ 4,729,300
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NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of
Holly Hill, Florida, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profii Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in
this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements.

2. LOANS OUTSTANDING

The City of Holly Hill, Florida, had the following loan balances outstanding at September 30, 2004. The
expenditures incurred during the year ended September 30, 2004 are included in the expenditures of federal
awards presented in the schedule.

Federal Outstanding
CFDA Expenditures Loan
Program Title Number Incurred Amount
U.S. Department of Environmental Protection:
Passed-through - Florida Department of
Environmental Protection:
Statewide Surface Water Restoration and
Wastewater Projects (#CS12070906P) 66,458 $ 2,770,179 $ 5,207,096

3, SUBRECIPIENTS

No subrecipient payments were made by the City of Helly Hill, Florida during the year ended September 30,
2004.
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Summary of Auditor’s Results

The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of the City
of Helly Hil, Florida.

No reportable conditions were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements or reported in
the Independent Auditors” Report on Compliance and on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Ne instances of noncempliance material to the financial statements of the City of Holly Hill, Florida,
were disclosed during the audit,

There are no reportable conditions disclosed relating to the audit of the major federal programs and
state projects reported in the Independent Auditors® Report on Compliance and Internal Contrel over

Compliance Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and State Project.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federat programs and state projects for the City of
Holly Hill, Florida, expresses an unqualified opinion.

The audit disclosed no audit findings which are required to be reported.

The programs/projects tested as major programs/projects included the following;

Federal Program: Federal CFDA No,
U.S. Department of Environmental Protection:
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 6G.458
U.S. Department of lHomeland Security:
Public Assistance Grants 97.036

State Projects - None.

The threshold for distinguishing Type A and Type B programs/projects was $300,000 for major
federal programs.

The City of Helly Hill, Florida was determined to be a low-risk auditee pursuant to OMB Circular
A-133,

Findings - Financial Statements -

OMB Circular A-133, Subpart E, Scction 505(d)(2): None
Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Programs -

OMB Circular A-133, Subpart E, Section 505{d)(3): Naone
Findings and Questioned Costs - Major State Projects -

Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General: Nomne
Other Issues None
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BRENT MILLIKAN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

The Honorable Mayor, and
Members of the City Commission
City of Holly Hill, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated April 12, 2005.

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing standards; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. We have issued our independent auditor's report on compliance and internal control over
financial reporting, independent auditor's report on compliance and internal control over compliance
applicable to each major federal program and state project, and schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated April 12, 2005, should be considered in
conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Those rules (Section 10.554(1)(h)1.) require that we address in the management letter, if not already
addressed in the auditor's reports on compliance and internal controls or schedule of findings and questioned
costs, whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address significant findings and recommendations
reported in the preceding annual financial audit report have been corrected. The recommendations made in
the preceding annual financial audit report have been corrected except for those reported below under the
heading Prior Year Findings and Recommendations.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)2.), the scope of our audit included a
review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that City of Holly Hill, Florida, complied with Section 218.415,
Florida Statutes.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)3.), recommendations to improve

financial management, accounting procedures, and internal control are reported in Exhibit A under the
heading Current Year Findings and Recommendations.
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The Honorable Mayor, and
Members of the City Commission

City of Holly Hill, Florida

Page 2 of 2

The Rules of Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)4.) require disclosure in the management letter of the
follewing matters if not already addressed in the auditor's reports on compliance and internal controls or
schedule of findings and questioned costs: (1) violations of laws, rules, regulations, and contractual provisions
or abuse that have occurred, or were likely to have occurred; (2) improper or illegal expenditures; (3)
improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e. g., the omission of required disclosures from the financial
statements); (4) failures to properly record financial transactions; and (5) other inaccuracies, shortages,
defalcations, and instances of fraud discovered by, or that come to the attention of, the auditoy. These matters
are reported in Exhibit A under the heading Current Year Findings and Recommendations.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(1}5.) also require that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in the
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The City of Holly Hill, Florida
was originally incorporated under the general laws of Florida on July 1, 1901 (Records of Incorporations,
Volusia County, Vol 1, p. 101). This incorporation was vaiidated in 1903 by Laws of Florida, Chapter 5346
(1903). The City of Holly Hill Community Redevelopment Authority was created by Ordinance No. 2420,

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)6.a.), the scope of our audit included
a review of the provisions of Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, regarding financial emergencies. In
connection with our audit, we determined that City of Helly Hill, Florida, is not in a state of financial
emergency as a consequence of the conditions described in Section 2[18.503(1), Florida Statutes.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(h)6.b.), we determined that the annual
financial report for City of [Holly 11ill, Florida for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, filed with the
Department of Banking Finance pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statufes, is in agreement with the annual
financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004.

Asrequired by the Rules of the Auditer General {Sections 10.554(h)(6)c. and 1G.556(8)), we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility fo monitor the entity’s financial condition,
and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the
review of financial information provided by same,

This management letter is intended solely for the information of use of the City Commission and
management, the Auditor General of the State of Florida, and federai and state awarding agencies, and is not
intended to be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Brect Nillider $ lo., Cho

April 12, 2005

101




MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS Exhibit A
Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

As required by Section 10.554(1)(h), Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, we make the
following disclosures:

B.

Prior Year Findings and Recommendations

Violations of Laws, Rules, and Regulations

FDEP Loan Requirement - Debt Service Account

Under the terms of the State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Drinking
Water State Revolving Fund Loan A greement, the City was required to establish a Loan Debt Service
Account for the purpose of receiving the required monthly deposits to pay the next upcoming semi-
annual principal and interest payment on the obligation in accordance with the provisions of Articie
III, Section 3.01 of the Loan Agreement.

Last year, we recommend that the Debt Service Account be established and funded at the earliest
possible convenience to be in compliance with the applicable loan covenant,

Current Year Status - This matter was corrected in the current year,

Iilegal or Improper Expenditures — None

Improper or inadeguate Accounting Procedures - None

Other Matters
Utilitics Inventories

Sound procedures for the taking of physical inventories is important in assuring that inventory
reflected in the financial records does physically exist and that the operating results of the proprietary
operation are not adversely affected from the exclusion of maferial inventories. However, this is not
a substitute for reliable accounting and reporting procedures.

We recommended that a perpetual inventory system be established to control sefected inventory items
that are readily convertible to personal use and items with high unit costs. Periodic physical counts
should be made of these items in order to detect pilferage or usage not charged to jobs, and the
physical count should be reconciled to the perpetual records.

Once established, perpetual records would:

. Reduce the frequency of physical inventory counts.

. Provide better accounting centrol over the flow of goods and increase the possibility of
detecting theft or unrecorded shipments.

. Provide management with more valuable tools to monitor realization and spot usage
inefficiencies,

. Provide more reliable cost and accounting data as a basis for determining operating results,
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MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS - (Continued) Exhibit A
Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

B.

Current Year Status - We continued to note that no steps were taken to reconcile the interim
valuations of fuel and utilities stores to adequately allocate the costs of such purchases in the
appropriate accounting periods and to account for the custedial responsibilities associated with these
items. While such valuations are continuously made and monitored to reduce the City's investiment
in these supplies, any changes in the City’s current bulk purchasing requirements made in
anticipation of potentially hedging increased fuel or supplies cost increases could materially affect
interperiod results of operations at the end of your respective accounting cycles.

We continue to recommend that procedures be considered to adequately account for the acquisition,
storage and utilization of ali City-owned inventories to reduce the risk of loss, and to adequately
reflect the results of operations of the user funds.

Current Year Findings and Recommendations

Viclations of Laws, Rules, and Regulations - None

Itlegal or Improper Expenditures -None

Improper or Inadequate Accounting Procedurces

Emploeyee Personal Computer Financing Assistance Program

Under recently revised generaily accepted auditing standards, we are reguired to conduct a series of
interviews with various members of management and employees of the City to inquire about the
susceptibility your financial statements to material misstatements that may occur as the result of
fraudulent and/or abusive activities. These discussions typically include an open exchange of ideas
{that is, brainstorming) and include direct inquiries of your management’s and employees’
knowledge of the existence of any potential fraudulent activities that may have occurred during the
audit period being examined. During these inquiries, we were informed that the City experienced
one isolated instance where an employee intentionally misrepresented the purchase of a personal
computer to obfain viravthorized personal access to the financing proceeds associated with its cost
under the City’s Employee Personal Computer Financing Assistance Program. We were also
informed that after continued and persistent inquiries by the City’s Finance personnel to obtain the
adequate supporting documentation of the purchase (to coyroborate the advancing of the financing
proceeds to the employee) without success, this unresolved matter was subsequently turned over to
the City’s Police Departiment for investigation. As a direct result of that formal internal Police
Department investigation, it was subsequently discovered that the supporting documentation
originally supplied by the employee could not be adequately corroborated. Afler the employee was
confronted with the results of the formal investigation, the employee tendered a resignation from
employment with the City, which was accepted. Subsequent to the employee’s resignation, all funds
advanced were fully recovered.
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MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS - {Continued) Exhibit A
Year Ended September 30, 2004
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

We were impressed with both management’s prompt and sincere willingness to disclose this matter
to our auditors, and with ifs immediate secondary followup response to fully investigate and
appropriately resolve this matter. Furthermore, the actions taken subsequent to the resolution of the
investigation were exemplory.

To aveid similar instances in the future, we recommend that serious consideration should be given
to requiring that all employee computer purchases asscciated with this program be conducted through
the City’s current procurement program to ensure that adequate documentation of such purchases are
obtained in advance, and that no cmployee advances for these purchases from outside vendors are
permitted.

D. Other Matters
Employee Cell Phone Usage and Payment Arrangements

During our testing of the City’s compliance with its existing procurement policies and procedures,
we noted several instances where employee shared cell phone minutes incurred for certain billing
periods substantially exceeded the maximum minutes allowed under the respective contraciual
arrangements. As a result, substantial additional payments (some in excess of 50% of the original
contract amount) resulted from this usage, After reviewing this matter in more detail, we observed
that ene member of management’s use ofien exceeded the minimum of the entire pool of shared
minutes, which was not adequate for the number of individuals included in the shared pool. While
some of these instances were attributed to the periods of time associated with the City’s hurricane
response actions taken in August and September of 2004, we noted that these actions occurred
throughout the fiscal year.

We recommend that steps should be considered to re-evaltuate the cell phone usage requirements of
all individuals sharing pooled minutes to determine if separate, more economical, billing
arrangements should be made for those who have substantially greater needs than others to reduce
these costs to the City.

Destruction/Disposal of Confidential Information

We noted that the City does not have any internal procedures in place associated with the destruction
or disposal of office materials and papers generated throughout the conduct of its business affairs.

We recommend that steps should be considered to contract with an outside waste disposal agency
for the destruction and/or shredding of its waste documentation to avoid the accidental dissemination
of certain personnel and other private and confidential information through the normal solid waste
disposal process. Additjonalily, most contractors offer the ability to redirect this waste to paper
recycling facilities which have the ability to conserve these resources for future use.
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Information Systems Technology Architecture and Control Environment

During the audit, our Firm’s Information Systems Analyst performed a comprehensive review of the
City’s computerized information systems technology and architecture. Qur staff met with several
members of management and the City’s IT Manager to discuss the inherent capabilities and
constraints associated with the City’s various current information and financial systems. We noted
that at the present time, there is no employed backup individual in place to share or to independently
diversify the responsibilities assumed exclusively by the IT Manager position. We also noted that
one member of the Finance Department currently fills in for the IT Manager when he is out by
ensuring that the scheduled tape backups occur and that the tapes have been moved offsite to the
Recreation Center. However, we did note that the I'T Manager is currently conducting inferviews for
a qualified assistant to provide for the diversification of these exclusive control and maintenance
duties.

In the current siteation, the City’s IT Manager has exclusive authority and control over all of the
City’s IT systems. In this role, he has complete access and exclusive control over the City’s financial
accounting systems, and he exclusively manages all user passwords and server authentication
requirements and has complete access and control over all employees’ incoming/outgoing email
activity.

We strongly recommend that you should seriously consider the formal development of a standby _
alternative action plan that requires the complete development of written documentation which
adequately supports and documents all [T activity of the City. We suggest that this documentation
shouid include complete written systems documentation of all current and existing system
applications, controls and oversight responsibilities. It should also contain documentary summaries
of all current oversight authorizations assumed by the IT Manager that would mitigate the impact of
the loss, or impairment of the sole individual who is designated with this exclusive oversight
responsibility in the event of any unforeseen or anticipated circumstances. Potentially, we believe
that the City needs to be fully prepared for a situation in which they may have to lock down the
virtual private network connection, exchange server, and extranets, to reconfigure the existing
internet firewall and to modify all existing passwords, while maintaining the current network
configuration and IT infrastructure in order to keep the City’s business up and running in the event
of the temporary or permanent loss of these individuals.

We also strongly recommend that the City should consider hiring an assistant to the IT Manager
position. Additionally, we recommend that the City should be prepared to contract with an outside
network advisor that could assist with securing the city's data and information infrastructure shouid
the need arise in the future.
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Muncipal Governance
Monitoring for fraud

In June 2003 the Comptroller General of the United States issued the 2003 revision of Governnrent
Auditing Standards, which incorporated the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’
promulgation Statements on Auditing Standards, No. 99 (SAS 99), Censideration of Fraud in a
Financial Statement Audit, SAS 99 includes a document titled “Management Antiftaud Programs
and Controls: Guidance to Help Prevent, Deter, and Detect Fraud,” which speils out specific
recommendations to help the City Commission, audit committee, management and others to prevent
and detect fraud — from unpreductive behavior and employee theft to misappropriation of assets and
fravdulent financial reporting. This document identifies the measures an organization should
consider taking to prevent, deter, and detect fraud. It maintains that the City should establish three
fundamental practices:

* A culture of honesty and high ethics
*  Anti-fraud processes and controls
*+  An appropriale oversight process

Management is responsible for overseeing the activities carried out by employees and for
implementing and monitoring anti-fraud processes and controls. However, it is possible that senior
management may initiate or participate in the concealment of a fraudulent act, because fraud can
ocour when management overrides internal coatrels. For that reason, an audit committee or
appoinied members of the Commission should supervise the activities of senior management. SAS
99 makes it clear that while management designs and implements anti-fraud systems and procedures,
strong oversight by the Commission, or audit commitiee, is absolutely crucial.

Accardingly, we recommend that the Commission discuss these matters with management and adopt
an active oversight process to evaluate management’s identification of fraud risks, implementation
of anti-fraud measures and maintenance of the appropriate supervision of the activities of senior
management, in addition o the activities involving all of the City’s personnel.

in addition, we recommend that management read the excerpt titled “Management Anti-fraud
Programs and Controls: Guidance to Help Prevent, Deter, and Detect Fraud” to better understand the
new requirements of this standard and for assistance in developing ways to enhance the City's
internal controls to specifically address fraud risk factors, identify anti-fraud processes and controls,
monitor such processes and controls and to provide a means for reporting any wrongdoeing.

Best Practices for Municipalities

In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, although not specifically applicable to local
governments, sets cut some best practices for corporate governance, which have been adepted or are
being censidered by other public sector entities, including municipalities, Because the City should
continually improve its financial reporting and zlso has a need to be responsive and proactive with
debt rating agencies, we believe it is important that the Council and senior management carefully
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consider the following best practices arising from the Act and determine what related actions make
the most sense for the City at the present time:

»  Senior financial managers should adopt a code of ethics and consider methods to ensure
compliance with this code.

+ A confidential complaint (whistle-blower) mechanism should be made available to
employees to communicate concerns about accounting, auditing, or internal contrel
processes.

+  Consideration should be given to implementing Section 302 of the Act. Section 302 requires
the CEO and CFO to assert that the financial statements have no material misstatements or
omissions and that they have evaluated disclosure controls and procedures.

+  Section 404 of the Actaddresses internal controls which are fundamental to sound financial
reporting and safeguarding of assets. A recommended practice is to document and evaluate
internal controls over a planned period of time.
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To the Honorable Mayor, City Commission
And City Manager

RESPONSE TO MANAGEMENT COMMENTS FYE 9/30/04

Utilities Inventories

The Finance Director and staff will continue to work with the City Manager and
the various departments to establish the procedures necessary for the taking of
physical inventories and to establish a perpetual inventory system that will
provide reliable accounting and reporting of inventories.

Employee Personal Computer Financing Assistance Program

Serious consideration is being given to the suggestion that all employee
computer purchases associated with this program will be conducted through the
City’s purchasing program to ensure that adequate documentation of such
purchases is obtained in advance, and no employee will receive an advance to
make purchases from outside vendors.

Employee Cell Phone Usage and Payment Arrangement

A re-evaluation of employee cell phone and usage requirements will be made to
determine individual usage requirements and the value of all individuals sharing
pooled minutes. We will also seriously consider providing an allowance to
certain employees whose job duties require the use of a cell phone based on
their usage requirements.

Destruction/Disposal of Confidential Information

The City currently complies with state public records and record retention laws
and contracts with a qualified company to maintain its files in storage for the
lengths of time required. Annually, records are reviewed to determine those that
are to be destroyed and the destruction certificates are prepared and approved.
The company then destroys the records as required. The City will consider
contracting with an outside agency to dispose of any duplicates of records that
may contain confidential information.
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INFORMATION SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGY ARCHITECTURE AND CONTROL
ENVIRONMENT

The City has budgeted and recently hired an assistant to the IT Manager to diversify the
authority and control the IT Manager has over all of the City’s IT systems. We will also
review the current action plans and documentation of the systems to mitigate the loss or
impairment of these individuals in the event of any unforeseen or anticipated
circumstances.

Monitoring for Fraud

The Finance Director and City Manager will work with the City Commission and
department staff to incorporate the recommendations made for establishing the
measures necessary to prevent, deter, and detect fraud within the city organization.

Brvide Hudercatin)

!
Brenda Gubernator
Finance Director




